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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the requirement that a public utility regulated by the public service commission 
provide advance notification of disconnection or termination of electricity or gas services. 

Minutes: Testimonies Attached 

Chairman Klein: Called the meeting to order. 

Senator Wardner: Introduced the bill. 

Todd D. Kranda, Attorney for Kelsch Law Firm: Written Testimony Attached (1 ). He is 
representing the North Dakota Manufactured Housing Association. Todd handed out written 
testimony for Scott and Nikki Webb of Twin City Estates and Wildwood MHP (2). 

Senator Sinner: Asked if was feasible to require a notification in a rental contract. 

Todd: Said it wouldn't be for the utility because they are not part of the arrangement, we 
only contract with the tenant. The utility has no obligation to us unless we are a customer. 

Senator Sinner: Said he was thinking in terms of lenders, lenders may want to be that third 
party as well. 

Todd: Said that they have not identified who that third party is, so the lender bank could be 
that designated third party. 

Senator Sinner: Said as he understands that the bill only designates a third party at the 
request of the customer. There is no requirement that a third party be designated, correct? 

Todd: Said yes, it would have to be the customer who has the privacy with the utility, as 
their customer, to be able to disclose that. The concern that they have, as expressed by the 
utility, is privacy. So a bank would have to have them sign a release of information to the 
third party, the bank. 

Senator Sinner: Said that is why he asked about having that as part of the rental contract, 
could that be required in a rental contract? 
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Todd: Said yes, but it still doesn't obligate the utility. That's why they need this law to 
protect everyone involved. 

Rocky Gordon, Lobbyist for the North Dakota Apartment Association: In support of the bill 
but wants to ask for one change. In the apartment business what is common is signing a 
Continuous Service Agreement with the utility, which says if the utility or gas is going to be 
shut off to put it in our name and the reason they do that is to protect the property. They 
would ask in addition to the authorization for disclosure, it would also say; or landlord on 
the Continuous Service Agreement. If that was in place they would also receive notification. 
He said if the bill is put in their name they don't think it is unreasonable that they would be 
notified. It would allow them to protect their property and it also alerts them to something 
being amiss. They use to routinely receive a copy of the notice that goes to the tenant so 
they were aware the billing was going to be placed in their name. 

Chairman Klein: Asked if they could turn of the electricity this time of year. 

Rocky: Said they can and do. 

Senator Laffen: Asked if as an owner he could have the Continuous Service Agreement 
with the utility. 

Rocky: Said you fill out a form with the utility and it lists you as the owner and a unit 
number. It basically says if you receive notification to turn this off, don't turn it off, we will be 
responsible for the billing. They have this with all their apartment buildings. 

Senator Laffen: Said if every landlord had that agreement, would we need this change? 

Rocky: Said yes, because they don't get notification. They would like to know when a bill 
gets placed in their name. They don't know until the bill comes. 

Senator Laffen: Said the issue of freezing up at unit would be taken care of because they 
would switch that to the landlord and continuous heat would be applied. 

Rocky: Said that is correct. 

Kent French, North Dakota Manufactured Housing Association: Said he is in support of the 
bill. They were informed last summer by Montana Dakota Utility that they would no longer 
receive notice when they have to disconnect within their communities. He went on to talk 
about the manufactured home communities and the situations that occur there. He handed 
out written testimony from various property owners and also a paper on the manufactured 
home water connector (3). 

Discussion continued about how they try to help the tenants get the money to pay their 
utility bill. 

Will Simpfenderfer, Zins Incorporated: He leases out 109 manufactured homes and also do 
business as; Frontier Homesteads Manufactured Homes Community, where they lease out 
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spaces to people who own their homes in Mandan. He is in support of the bill. He gave a 
handout on MDU Resources Group, Incorporated (4). He talked about his support of the 
bill. (32:52) 

Larry Gullickson, Represents North Dakota Manufactured Housing Association: In support 
of the bill. He is representing Oakland Properties and also owns his own rental properties. 
He agrees with what has already been said. He was asked several questions that he 
answered about MDU and people he helps out. (43:45) 

Ted Bratten, North Park Incorporated: He owns a three hundred unit manufactured housing 
community in western North Dakota. He is in support of the bill. He explained his feelings 
on the bill. He was asked and answered several questions. (50:36) 

Chairman Klein: Said they would switch gears and go to opposition of the bill. 

Shane Goettle, Attorney representing Montana Dakota Utility: He handles their state 
government affairs. He gave an overview of the issues. He said that MDU changed their 
practices for three reasons; Privacy concerns, Business reasons and there are Legal 
reasons, especially when the landlord becomes a debt collector on behalf of MDU. He also 
said that MDU already provides a Continuous Service Agreement. (56:26) 

Mike J. Gardner, Executive Vice President of Utility Operations and Support: Written 
Testimony (4). (58:23) 

Chairman Klein: Asked what they did before this bill, if they made contact with the 
landlords. 

Mike: Said they were in some cases making verbal contact. He said it was an inconsistent 
practice and varied by location and property owner. 

Chairman Klein: Said inconsistent but being done? 

Mike: Said Yes. 

Chairman Klein: Said that they were accomplishing what the landlords wanted them to do 
and bringing down the number of disconnects. Something was being done right. 

Mike: Said that it was through the efforts of the utility primarily, they are the ones working 
with their customers and are best suited to work with their customers. 

Questions and answers continued about MDU's concerns and those of the landlords. (1 :04) 

Tamie Aberle, Director of Regulatory Affairs with Montana Dakota Utilities: Said that she 
would answer a couple of the questions. With regard to the number of customers in North 
Dakota, MDU servers approximately one hundred and thirty five thousand. For that time 
period that was referenced they issued about ninety four thousand disconnect notices and 
approximately twenty three hundred customers were ultimately disconnected. She 
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discussed what MDU is doing in regards to disconnect notices in the other states they 
serve and questions were asked and answered. 

Dan Kuntz, Associate General Counsel for MDU Resources Group: Said he was involved in 
drafting the Continuous Service Agreement and he wanted to address a couple of the 
issues. The privacy issue in terms of a legal standpoint, there isn't anything that would 
prohibit or act as an impediment for the legislature to pass the bill to require the notice. The 
reason for the privacy concern is that MDU is very protective of their customer information. 
They always ask for a subpoena before providing any information. They do not give out 
customer information to a third party unless a customer requests it. He went on to explain 
their policies and what the bill would change as far as the number of notices that would 
need to be sent out. (1:23:15) 

Senator Laffen: Said the Continuous Service Agreement seemed to be a viable answer for 
this, landlords, and properties but is a little nervous about that being the right tool for the 
mobile homes. The owner of the mobile home park may only have equity in the small 
infrastructure down below and he is being asked to have an agreement that would cause 
him to pay the heating bill for the whole unit. 

Dan: Said that was the reason for the concern about wanting an automatic notice if it's 
transferred to their account because they didn't want to go thirty days to find out it had 
flipped over and then suddenly they are paying someone's heating bill for a month. That is 
why they have developed the electronic notification system so that they would get notified 
that it was transferred to their name. 

Questions were asked about privacy laws and debt collection and debt collection. 

Chairman Klein: Suggested that Dan Kuntz and Todd D. Kranda get together to come up 
with something that would work. He closed the hearing 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the requirement that a public utility regulated by the public service commission 
provide advance notification of disconnection or termination of electricity or gas service 

Minutes: Amendment Attached 

Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing. Asked Todd D. Kranda to come up and if this new 
amendment was a good thing. 

Todd D. Kranda, Attorney for Kelsch Law Firm: Said he talked with Dan Kuntz, Associate 
General Counsel for MDU Resource Group; and they worked it out over the weekend. He 
said Shane Goettle, Attorney representing MDU; shared it with Chairman Klein this 
morning. He went over the changes made. (1: 16) 

Chairman Klein: Asked if this was a hog house amendment. 

Todd: Said he doesn't think this is. The amendment he handed out had two subparagraphs. 

Chairman Klein: Handed out the amendment. Attachment (1) 

Todd: Said it is a semi hoghouse of the bill but they saved a lot of it. He continued going 
over the changes. (2:43) 

Senator Andrist: Said it does a good job of taking care of the manufactured homes people 
but wanted to know about taking care of the banker and doesn't think this fixes that. 

Todd: Said it is any third party, so we still have to have a notification that is provided. If you 
look at paragraph two on the amendment, the second sentence; the customer shall 
designate the third party on a form provided by or approved by the public utility. The third 
party could be the banker or the landlord, could be the owner. 

Senator Andrist: Said it wouldn't necessarily be both. 
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Todd: Said it could be both. You could have duplication or two forms. He didn't see any 
problem with that. The form will be available on the website so it is available to whoever 
would need it. 

Chairman Klein: Said after they get the amendment ready that they will show it to him 
before it goes to the floor. 

Senator Laffen: Commented that the limited liability was new to this. 

Todd: Said yes, the last sentence on subparagraph two. (6:16) 

Chairman Klein: Said he did speak to the MDU folks and they are on board. He said he 
would get the form in styled and then he will bring it back. Closed the hearing. 
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Discussion and Vote 
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Shane Goettle, Attorney for MDU: Said that Todd D. Kranda was not able to make it,but 
wanted him to confirm that all of the parties that they heard from were in agreement with 
MDU primarily and the folks that Todd was representing. We are very comfortable with the 
language as is; MDU can build its system to put any field in for the landlords. MDU believes 
that the shortened notice period from the previous bill cut out a lot of the extraneous 
notices, which they were concerned about. They would ask that they would adopt these 
amendments and then they would support the passage of 2174. 

Discussion followed; ( 1 :31) 

Senator Unruh motioned for the adoption of the amendment. 

Senator Sinner seconded the motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes- 7 No- 0 

Senator Unruh motioned for a do pass as amended. 

Senator Sinner seconded the motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes- 7 No- 0 Absent: 0 

Floor Assignment: Senator Unruh 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2174 

Page 1, line 3, replace "disconnection or termination" with "discontinuance" 

Page 1, replace lines 8 through 12 with: 

"Notification before discontinuance of utility service. 

1.,_ A public utility shall provide notice to a customer of the utility's intention to 
discontinue utility service for payment delinquency in accordance with 
commission rules. 

2. A public utility shall provide notice to a third party designated by a 
customer of the utility's intention to discontinue electric or natural gas 
service to the customer for payment delinquency. The customer shall 
designate the third party on a form provided by or approved by the public 
utility. The public utility may elect to provide notice to a designated third 
party by mail or electronic means. Notice by mail must be made not less 
than five days before discontinuance and notice by electronic means must 
be made not less than three days before discontinuance. A public utility is 
immune from civil liability for failing to provide notice or providing incorrect 
notice to a third party of its intention to discontinue utility service to a 
customer." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 



Date: 01/29/13 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2174 

Senate Industry, Business, and Labor Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 13.8204.01001 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended C8J Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Senator Unruh Seconded By Senator Sinner 

Senators Yes No 
Chariman Klein X 

Vice Chairman Laffen X 

Senator Andrist X 

Senator Sorvaag X 

Senator Unruh X 

Total (Yes) 7 No ----------�----------

Absent 0 

Senator 

Senator Murphy 
Senator Sinner 

0 

Yes No 

X 

X 

------------------------------------------------------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 01/29/13 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2174 

Senate Industry, Business, and Labor Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 13.8204.01001 

Action Taken: [gJ Do Pass D Do Not Pass [gJ Amended 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

D Adopt Amendment 

Motion Made By Senator Unruh Seconded By Senator Sinner 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chariman Klein X Senator Murphy X 

Vice Chairman Laffen X Senator Sinner X 

Senator Andrist X 

Senator Sorvaag X 

Senator Unruh X 

Total (Yes) 7 No ----------�--------- 0 

Absent 0 �----------------------------------------------------------

Floor Assignment Senator Unruh ������-----------------------------------------

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
January 30, 2013 8:20am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_16_007 
Carrier: Unruh 

Insert LC: 13.8204.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2174: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Klein, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2174 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 3, replace "disconnection or termination" with "discontinuance" 

Page 1, replace lines 8 through 12 with: 

"Notification before discontinuance of utility service. 

1. A public utility shall provide notice to a customer of the utility's intention to 
discontinue utility service for payment delinquency in accordance with 
commission rules. 

£. A public utility shall provide notice to a third party designated by a 
customer of the utility's intention to discontinue electric or natural gas 
service to the customer for payment delinquency. The customer shall 
designate the third party on a form provided by or approved by the public 
utility. The public utility may elect to provide notice to a designated third 
party by mail or electronic means. Notice by mail must be made not less 
than five days before discontinuance and notice by electronic means 
must be made not less than three days before discontinuance. A public 
utility is immune from civil liability for failing to provide notice or providing 
incorrect notice to a third party of its intention to discontinue utility service 
to a customer." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the requirement that a public utility regulated by the public service commission 
provide advance notification of discontinuance of electric or gas service. 

Minutes: Testimony #1 

Chairman N. Johnson: opened the hearing on SB 2174. 

Todd D. Kranda, Kelsh Law Firm: (See testimony #1) 01:00- 4:06 

Rep. Koppelman: The bill allows the consumer to request an advanced notice or 
designate someone else to receive the advanced notice, but that seems to put the burden 
on the consumer to do that. It doesn't seem to give the landlord an absolute right to have 
that information. Have you thought about that? Why would we not do that? 

Todd Kranda: The concern came up with providing the consumer information by a 
company. There are some privacy and confidentiality concerns so the way it was drafted 
was to allow protections to the company that is disclosing information because it does have 
to come through the consumer because you are disclosing that the consumer cannot 
financially meet their obligations. So that consumer who could be our tenant if I am the 
landlord or owner would be asked for potentially as part of the lease agreement to 
designate that owner or landlord as the party to receive notice. We are comfortable that we 
would be able to work with our tenants and customers to get those things. 

Rep. Koppelman: I understand the privacy concerns but you are dealing with property that 
is owned by one individual or entity and potentially rented by someone else. If we are 
dealing with services; if it is cable television, as a landlord you may not have the right to 
know or care, but most of the things regulated by the PFC are more vital services. For 
example in North Dakota in the dead of winter the electricity is shut off a pipes break and 
the property is damaged as a result of that the owner of the property it seems to me would 
have a right to know. 

Todd Kranda: I am not sure the law would allow you to disclose. The bill came about due 
to a change in policy by a company that was servicing the area, MDU. We worked this out 
with them in the Senate. This bill does talk about the heat and winter freeze up and the 



House Political Subdivisions Committee 
SB 2174 
March 7, 2013 
Page 2 

damage that can be caused. This gives the protection that we need to have notice in 
advance to adequately protect our property or get the tenant or consumer to make 
arrangements to get assistance to pay their bill or assist in continuing the service in some 
other manner. 

Rep. Koppelman: I am not sure it gives you an absolute right as I read the bill. It says if 
the consumer decides to name you with the utility as someone to whom information can be 
disclosed that you will be notified. If you are the owner and you have a property and 
financial interest what if the tenant says I don't want my landlord to know if he is going to be 
cute off. 

Todd Kranda: The company we are dealing with in this instance has a separate 
agreement; a continuous service agreement. They were in the past providing them to the 
landlords of the property and that wasn't consistent with all their business entities across 
different states and they were trying to become more uniform and they created a policy and 
developed a continuous service agreement and offered that instead. The continuous 
service agreement could be signed up by an owner or landlord and it provides for 
continuous, but the bill then to be triggered over to the landlord or owner for those unpaid 
services beyond the termination date normally if we agree to that. I am not certain we can 
force a company to say without the permission and protections; I don't want to get into the 
fight of privacy rights; I think was a fix that takes care of my client interests and the 
manufactured housing association and other similar entities that would be affected just as 
them. 

Rep. Koppelman: I understand that and if we have one companies concerns addressed, 
but the laws we make govern all tenants and all landlords and all property owners etc. 
What would be wrong with something in law? We would not have to disclose information 
about the whys and wherefores and amounts of money or whatever if you just say unless 
we hear from you by such and such a date service to this property will be discontinued for 
reasons we aren't devolving right now. So the owner could protect the property. I am not 
advocating someone have information that someone else might not want them to have, but 
I do think they should have information to protect their property. 

Todd Kranda: The law puts into effect something that is not protecting us now. Now we 
are not protected at all. This law allows protections to be put in place. It goes through the 
proper channels of the consumer to designate a third party. You are talking about a 
completely different concept that just give the right to an owner to say utility provide it to 
me. That puts that utility in a difficult spot I think. That was the discussion I had with the 
utilities legal counsel so what we came up with is similar with other states have similar 
concepts which there is a designation. We think it protects more than just the two 
companies that I have identified; it protects everyone. I think it is adequate and reasonable 
and I think if you have a relationship with your tenant you should be able to have that 
discussion with the tenant to exercise some type of documentation necessary to implement 
this notice. 

Rep. Hatlestad: As the owner of a manufactured home that I am going to rent out can I 
have an agreement with MDU that continued service agreement; can I put that into effect 
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so I am guaranteed that service will not be cut off even though I am going to rent it to 
somebody else? 

Todd Kranda: I think you can either have the service in your own name and you paying 
the bill and maybe you just tack it on as additional portion of the rent so you are 
automatically the customer for the utility. If you don't then the tenant would have to be the 
customer to pay that utility. Yes I think the continuous service agreement at least through 
the company we are dealing with they do offer that so that is available through MDU. Then 
they are protected too. 

Rep. Hatlestad: If I do that with you does that automatically notifying the renter then that 
such an agreement is in effect? 

Todd Kranda: I think that it is a contractual agreement with you and the utility. I am not 
sure I would want the renter to know that I would pick up the tab. 

Rep. Hatlestad: Could I as a landlord mandate in the lease agreement that name the third 
party? 

Todd Kranda: I think I would add that requirement with my lease so that I am protected. 

Rep. Klemin: I think this could apply to landlords with multiunit housing and lenders if they 
wanted to know whether their borrower is delinquent on payments because if a lender has 
to foreclose on a manufactured home or house or whatever it is I am sure they would prefer 
to get it with pipes and water header that are not frozen. Can they also be designed as a 
secured party? · 

Todd Kranda: Good point. It does not say that it is a landlord or owner. In the Senate IBL 
committee we had a banker Senator Sinner and that is exactly the question he asked. We 
don't designate who that third party is. Banks already have that kind of notice if there is no 
insurance on the house. This is a board protection to all of those categories that you just 
identified. 

Rep. Klemin: So there could be several third party designations. Can they have several 
different third parties designated then? 

Todd Kranda: I don't think we have limited it. MDU went through a reorganization of their 
computer process so they are going to reprogram in these notices and either trigger a letter 
within 5 days or an email or electronic notification within 3 days. I think it would be an easy 
program. 

Rep. Klemin: What if they don't do it? What is the penalty? 

Todd Kranda: There is not a penalty. That would be something we could address if there 
is a continued mistake and not being done. I feel comfortable with the discussions I have 
had with the company that they are going forward with that. 
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Rep. Kathy Hogan: In the original bill there was a 10 day advanced notice and in the new 
bill there is only a 3 or 5 day and I am a bit concerned about that because somebody might 
be gone for a long weekend. 

Todd Kranda: The 10 days initiated was for the consumer. When we listened to the 
testimony there was some testimony about how many consumers received those 10 day 
notices and how many were actually disconnected. Once they receive that termination 
notice it is a high percentage of response. So giving them those 5 extra days because they 
respond and pay would limit the number of notices that the designated party would get 
because most of them end of paying. Most procedures, I think, will be by electronic mail 
and that is instant. We did not have a concern with that. 

Rep. Kathy Hogan: So there is a first notice you get and most people respond and pay 
their bill. It is really the second notice that is the 5 day notice? 

Todd Kranda: Not necessarily. There is that first notice that goes to the tenant and then 
typically the customer will pay. If that happens the landowner doesn't need a notice. If they 
haven't paid after that notice is mailed to the customer then 5 days before the actual 
termination we will get a notice. So there isn't two notices sent to the customer necessarily, 
there could be two notices sent out. We are trying to eliminate the second notice if we don't 
need it since the customer already paid within a 5 or 7 day window. 

Rep. M. Klein: What about the rural electrics? Do they have this system? 

Todd Kranda: I don't know if it was testified to specifically. I know there was some 
reference made that a lot of the utilities even those that are not regulated by PFC are 
providing the notice. 

Rep. Klemin: Just to clarify the timing of this notice; the commission requires a 10 day 
notice to the customer. That doesn't appear to be changed by this bill. They would not be 
sending out a notice to both parties at the same time? 

Todd Kranda: No I do not believe so. Lines 8 & 9 they do now. We are adding paragraph 
2 lines 10-18 which adds a duty and that is the duty of the 5 day 3 day notice to the 
designation third party and it allows the designation so that is the only change. 

Rep. Klemin: Why did we change it from 10 days to 5 days or 3 days? 

Todd Kranda: When the notice goes out to the consumer the consumer writes the check 
and it's paid. If that happens the landlord doesn't need to know it. If it doesn't get paid then 
our 5 day or 3 day notice comes to us and we can respond. 

Rep. Klemin: Is there a 10 day notice and then another 5 days after that for the third party 
to pay? 

Todd Kranda: It doesn't extend the 10 day notice. They are all the same still. 
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Rep. Koppelman: The original bill specifically talked about utilities regulated by PFC. The 
current bill doesn't mention the commission other than in the title so I know that is the 
section of law that deals with them, but I was looking at the definition of a public utility and I 
am wondering could this be things like city water service or garbage; is that considered a 
public utility? 

Todd Kranda: Chapter 49-04 is duties of public utilities. If you look in sub paragraph 2 
talks about electric and natural gas service so that is the focus again. 

Shane Goettle, MDU Resources: MDU Resources is pleased to have worked this out 
with the landlords that brought this issue forward. This issue came about because MDU 
changed some of its practice. In some cases it was giving landlords advanced notice; and 
in other cases it wasn't so there was a disparate practice going on in the territory that it 
serves. They now have come up with a continuous service agreement with MDU. That 
wasn't sufficient for the cliental that Mr. Kranda represents and they came forward with this 
bill. MDU has a very strong privacy policy. They don't give out information about their 
customers without the customers consent and in no case without a court order. The person 
who is in the best position to decide if the data is sensitive and should be distributed to a 
customer is the customer himself. We also have some issues with property issues where 
landlords want to protect their property. So to satisfy both of those concerns; and to protect 
the customer's privacy we encourage the continuous service agreement. We stand in 
support of this bill now today since it now strikes the right balance between privacy and 
protection of property. 

Rep. Koppelman: My concern is that if we are not careful how we word this legislation the 
person with the most to lose could be a little mom and pop that goes south they may or 
may not get mail within 3 days or electronic means to be notified. Is there is not a way we 
could just say that the owner of the property needs to be informed. Is there a way to care 
for that person as responsible legislators? 

Shane Goettle: Landlords as property owners should take actions to protect that property 
themselves. We can't look to the government to do that for us. It is important that 
somebody who is leasing property to have an agreement with their tenant to have some 
neighbors keeping an eye on things and they can take steps to approach the utility if they 
wish to enter into a continuous service agreement to protect themselves. Now we are 
adding in this additional tool that if MDU in this case is leasing property and the landlord will 
get a notice of discontinuance; I think that is sufficient. 

Rep. Hatlestad: I have a question with this Continuous Service Agreement do you make 
all your landlords aware that such a thing exists? Is there a charge for that agreement? 

Dan Kuntz, MDU Resources: The intent is to let as many landlords know about it as 
possible and there is not a charge for it. 

Claus Lempke, ND Assoc. of Realtors : We think this is a good bill and we support it. 

Rocky Gordon, ND Apartment Association: We are in support of this bill. I listened to 
the questions and we have talked a lot about this continuous service agreement. 
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My company and most of the members have them in place. Does this bill address that? If 
it doesn't could it be made to do so? 

Rep. M. Klein: When you take over the utility bill either your renter has left or he hasn't paid 
his bill. Isn't that the case? 

Rocky Gordon: Yes, but we would like to know they left. 

Rep. Koppelman: I don't think the bill does do that. Dealing with these situations do you 
know that all the apartments have these kinds of agreements? 

Rocky Gordon: In the major markets I think they do. I don't know about smaller utilities. 

Dan Kuntz: This bill deals with pre disconnection notice. This bill does not address the 
continuous service agreement at all. We agreed we would develop a notification system 
manually now and once we are convinced that we have that in place we will have to go 
back and program that in. We have committed to providing that notice. It is not in the bill. 

Rep. Koppelman: What is the view of your company in who the consumer is? What is 
their contractual obligation in terms of what triggers who as a utility providing service 
considers your consumer? Is that accurate? 

Dan Knutz: The customer is whoever signed up with service with us. 

Rep. Koppelman: Most utilities view or service providers of all types and it is owned by 
someone they have had a long standing relationship with them; is that how you view it or is 
it a revolving door every time someone calls you? 

Dan Kuntz: I think that is how this bill came about. Before we drafted the continuous 
service agreement some of our districts who knew who the landlords were in certain 
buildings etc. found out a tenant was going to be disconnected and it was going to be cold 
they would try to get ahold of the landlord and say hey you do know we are disconnecting 
service to that particular property. We discontinued that practice when we started the 
continuous service agreement because it wasn't very efficient and we don't know all the 
landlords and we weren't consistence basis and we realized we were violating our own 
customer privacy policies. 

Rep. Koppelman: Discussed two scenarios using Rep. Hogan and Hanson. 

Dan Kuntz: The difference in the bill requires that Rep. Hanson had signed the 
authorization letting us give notice to Rep. Hogan. So if Rep. Hanson doesn't want his 
landlord knowing about this or whoever they don't sign the authorization form so the 
customer is the one who is giving us the authority to notify that third party that that service 
is in danger of being disconnected. 

Rep. Koppelman: If the same scenarios happened now the continuous service agreement 
would still violate that privacy arguably because the only reason it would switch over would 
be that there was a bill not paid. 
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Dan Kuntz: Not necessarily. Rep. Hanson calls us up this morning and says I am leaving 
shut my gas off. He is our customer and he doesn't necessarily tell his landlord he is 
leaving. In that case this bill will not help that scenario. The only way for Rep. Hogan to 
protect himself in that situation to have signed a continuous service agreement. 

Rep. Klemin: We have a lot of other utilities in the state so this would also apply to them. 
Do you know what is happening there? 

Dan Kuntz: I have not heard anyone complain and they did not have a problem with the 
amended bill. 

Rep. Klemin: What if we added another subsection here if you have a continuous service 
agreement the public utility shall notify that third party that bill was going to be switched 
over under that agreement. That is something you said you were going to do anyway. 

Dan Kuntz; I don't know what their practices are? 

Rep. Klemin: This is in regard to public utilities I don't get my electricity from MDU what 
about coops? 

Dan Kuntz: No it does not cover them. 

Rep. Beadle: Isn't this whole continuation agreement addressed by the landlord tenant 
agreement and addressed in the lease. 

Dan Kuntz: Yes I think that is where it will be. 

Rep. Beadle: So the best protection for a landlord to ensure that they are not going to 
have the pipes shut off on their rental property is going to be for them when they are 
drafting a lease with their tenant to come to them with these sorts of agreements and tell 
them the power is not getting shut off here in the contract. 

Dan Kuntz: Yes it is a continuous service agreement. The only way if you are a landlord to 
protect yourself to have signed the continuous service agreement. 

Rep. Klemin: So what happens with the coops? Do you have continuous service 
agreements too? 

Rocky Gordon: I am not sure? On apartments we are talking about electricity; not gas so 
the heat probably isn't going to be shut off which is the bigger concern of ours. 

Opposition: None 

Neutral: 

Harlow Fuglesten, ND Association of Rural Electric Cooperatives: We are not 
regulated by the Public Service Commission. Our boards of directors act as a public 
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service commission and we deal with these issues and develop policies on disconnections. 
We have 16 different cooperatives so they all have different policies but I do know our 
coops are served around urban areas and they have more landlord tenant issues 
addressed and they follow policies similar that are laid down by the Public Service 
commission, but they may have other arrangements as well. They are accurately aware of 
the concerns that landlords have. I have discussed this with a couple of them and they are 
aware of this legislation. I don't think we are having a problem. 

Rep. Klemin: We could amend another part of the law here and make this apply to coops. 

Harlow Fuglesten: We take very serious our obligation as our board of directors do as 
representatives of the customers to do the right thing for the customers and they are open 
to consider these policies. We don't think there have been any complaints so we think that 
is really unnecessary. 

Hearing closed. 

Do Pass Motion Made by Rep. Beadle: Seconded by Rep. M. Klein: 

Rep. Klemin: This notice issue only covers public utilities that are regulated by the PFC 
and we have 16 RECs did not know of any problems, but again maybe he is not in a 
position to know whether they have any problems like this or not. If the public facility is 
going to be required to give notice to a third party why shouldn't that same requirement 
apply to an REC? It is an exact same issue here. 

Rep. J. Kelsh: They are regulated by a board that is elected by the members they serve 
and I think if they don't do a lot of the same things that this bill would require they would be 
in a lot of trouble and I have never heard of anyone saying those nasty rural electrics need 
to be put under the same conditions as the people under the PFC because they have 
annual meetings where people can express their concerns. There was no one hearing 
saying they were having a problem with them. 

Rep. M. Klein: Most of the cities or new areas are served by the coops and you would 
think they should come up with the same standards. 

Rep. Koppelman: I will support the motion. I do have concerns where we are hearing two 
parties; a special interest in the rental rural and one utility and we are hearing their policies 
and their privacy policy and their policy with continuous service agreements etc. which may 
or may not translate around the state to all the population we represent so I am 
uncomfortable with the way the bill is written in protecting folks the way we should. 

Rep. Hatlestad: What about the continuous service agreement that MDU says they are 
going to implement. Do we need to put anything in the bill? 

Rep. Klemin: There is immunity if they don't give this notice and it was acknowledged they 
are working on a way to do that which may or may not be in affect this fall when the next 
heating season starts. I don't like immunity. 
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Chairman N. Johnson: We had a representative from the Public Service Commission 
setting out there and there was no indication that they had a problem with it. 

Vote: 14 Yes 0 No 1 Absent Carrier: Rep. Muscha: 

Closed. 
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TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF 
SENATE BILL NO. 2174 

SENATE INDUSTRY BUSINESS & LABOR COMMITTEE 
JANUARY 22, 2013 

Good morning Chainnan Klein and members of the Senate Industry Business & 

Labor Committee, for the record my name is Todd D. Kranda. I am an attorney at the 

Kelsch Law Firm in Mandan and I am representing the North Dakota Manufactured 

Housing Association in support of SB 217 4. 

SB 217 4 is being presented to you in order to clarifY that customers of a Public 

Service Commission regulated electric or gas utility are entitled to receive at least ten 

days advance written notice before disconnection or termination of service may occur. In 

addition, there is a provision included within SB 217 4 that allows for the customer to 

authorize the disclosure and notification by the gas or electric utility to a designated third 

party, such as a landlord or owner of the subject property, before the disconnection or 

termination of service occurs. 

Cunently, the Public Service Cmmnission, in the North Dakota Administrative 

Code, has provisions for ten day advance notice to customers before tennination of 

service; as well as an advance notice to the tenant before service is disconnected if the 

landlord or owner of the property is delinquent. See copies of Sections 69-09-01-18.1 

(gas service) & 69-09-02-05.1 (electric service) of the ND Administrative Code attached. 



SB 217 4 clarifies that the customer is entitled to advance notice and that the 

customer may designate that a third party, such as the landlord or owner, may be notified 

in advance before service is disconnected or terminated. 

Members of North Dakota Manufactured Housing Association as well as others 

who are effected by the lack of advance notice before tennination of gas or electric 

service are here to testify in support of the advance notice requirements in SB� 2174 with 

specific examples of the reason that SB 2174 is necessary and appropriate. I will end my 

fonnal testimony at this point and stand for any questions and simply conclude with a 

request that you give a favorable Do Pass recmmnendation to SB 2174. 
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ARTICLE 69-09 

PUBLIC UTILITY DIVISION 

Standards of Service - Gas 
Standards of Service - Electric 
Gas Pipeline Safety 
Un iform Sign Standards - Railroad 
Standards of Service - Telephone 
Acco u nting Practices 
Proh ibition on Sale and D irect Industrial Use of Natural Gas for 

Outdoor Lighting [Repealed] 
S mall Power Production and Cogeneration 
Renewable Electricity and Recycled E nergy Tracking System 
Wind Turbine Decommissioning 

CHAPTER 69-09-01 
STAN DARDS OF SERVICE- GAS 

Defin itions 
Heating Value 
Calorimeter Equ ipment 
Purity of Gas 
Pressure of Gas 
Pressure Recording Eq uipment and Rec ords 
Defin ition of a Cubic Foot of Gas 
Testing Facil ities 
Meter Prover 
Location of Meters 
Service Meters Req uired 
Prepayment Meters 
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Periodic Tests 
Req uests and Referee Tests 
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Discontinuance of Gas Service 
Extensions of Service 
I nformation to Customers 
Bi l l ing Basis 
Meter Readings on Bi l ls 
Adjustment of Bi lls for Meter Error 
Refunds 
Resale 
Fi l ing of Rates 
Rate Applications 
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w h ich the customer owes the util ity. Upon termination of a g uarantee 
contract a new contract or a cash deposit may be req u ired by the uti l ity. 

H istory: Amended effective Apri l  1 ,  1 985. 

General Authority: N DCC 49-02-1 1 

Law Im pleme nted: N DCC 49-02-1 1 

69-09-01 -1 8. Discontinuance of service. S uperseded by section 
69-09-0 1 -1 8 . 1 . 

69-09-0 1 -1 8. 1 . Disconti nuance of ·gas service. 

1 .  A uti l ity may discon nect service if the customer is del inq uent in payment 
for services rendered. However, no uti l ity shal l  discontinue service to a 
customer for fai lure to pay for such service u nti l the util ity shall first have 
g iven the customer n otice of its intention to discontinue such service o n  
acco u nt o f  del inquency. The n otice shal l :  

a.  Be sent by first-class mai l  addressed to the customer at the place 
where service is rendered, except that in the case of residential 
customers sixty-five years of age or o lder, or for handicapped 
customers, personal notice by del ivery is req u ired. A copy of each 
notice m ust also be mailed to the nearest social service office and 
to any other appropriate financial assistan ce agency, providing 
that prior approval has been g iven by the customer pursuant to  
subsection 2.  

b .  Show the amount o f  the del inquency. 

c. I n clude the telephone n umber of the publ ic service commission .  

d .  Advise the customer of the customer's rig hts and remedies, 
including the right of the customer to stay termination for up to 
th irty days if the customer advises the util ity with i n  the ten-day 
n otice period that dangerous health conditions exist or that the 
customer is sixty-five years of age or o lder or that the customer is 
handicapped. In additio n ,  the n otice s hal l  advise the customer of 
the customer's right to work out a satisfactory deferred instal lment 
agreement for del inquent accounts and of the opportun ity to enter 
into eq ual month ly payment plans for future service. 

e. I nform the customer that service wi l l  be discontin ued if the 
del inquent accou nt is not paid with in . ten calerjdar days from the 
date of mai l ing or personal delivery of the n otice ,  or if a satisfactory 
insta l lment agreement is not made with the uti l ity for payment of 
the del inq uent bi l l .  

I f  the customer elects to enter into a deferred insta l lment agreement for 
del inq uent accou nts , service may not be term inated; however, the uti l ity 
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may discontinue service without further notice if the customer fai ls to pay 
the del inq uent account on or before the date specified in the notice, or 
in accordance w ith the deferred installment agreement. The customer 
shal l  have the privi lege of paying the del inq uent account  at any time 
prior to the actual disconnection of service, and the person directed by 
the uti l ity to make the d isconnection shal l  be deemed authorized and 
shall accept payment of the delinquent acco unt if tendered to the p erson 
by the customer before actual disconnection of service is made. 

2. It shall  be the responsibil ity of all residential customers s ixty-five years 
of age or older, handicapped, or having an emergency medical problem 
in the household, including l ife-sustain ing appliances, such as k idney 
dialysis, to notify th e util ity of such status. To assist in such notification ,  
al l  ut i l ities shall ann ually inel ude a preaddressed postage-paid postcard 
in th e month ly bi l l ing mailed to al l  residential customers during the bi l l ing 
period ending October first. Such notice shal l  also be provided to a l l  new 
customers in that service area when they are first provided service by 
the uti l ity. 

The postcard shall  incl ude the fol lowing q u estions: 

1 .  
\_ -

I s  any memb e r  o f  your hou s eh o l d  65 years 

of age or o l d e r ,  or handi c apped? 

2 .  Do you have any eme rgency medi c a l  prob l em 

in your household? 

3 .  Do you de s i re that t h e  area s o c i a l  s e rvi c e  

o f fi ce or o t h e r  appropri a t e  f inanc i a l  

a s s i s t ance agency be n o t i f i e d  i n  t h e  event 

of a propo s e d  di s c onne c t ?  

4 .  Do you de s i re that s ome other t h i r d  party 

b e  cont a c t e d  i n  the event o f  a d i s connect? 

If so,  name a n d  addr e s s  o f  p e r s on ______ _ 

5 .  I f  you a r e  having di f f i cu l t y  p a y i n g  your 

u t i l i t y  b i l l ,  p l e a s e  con t a c t  o u r  l oc a l  

s e rv i c e  repr e s en t a t i v e  or bus i n e s s  o f f i ce 

s o  t h a t  we can wor k wi th you on your 

p r ob l em . 

Ut i l i t y T e l ephone Numb e r  --------------­
O f f i ce Addr e s s  

D a t e  ___ _ Name -----------------­
Addr e s s  ---------------

S i gnature 

YES NO 

3. Service shall not be discon nected under th is section on weekends, 
Fridays, state hol idays, the day before a state hol iday, or after 
twelve noon on any day. A report describing the total nu mber of 
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a ctual d iscon nects, date and time, type of customer, a n d  amount of 
delinquency for each discon nected customer s h a ll be filed monthly with 
the commission with in ten days after the last d a y  of each month . 

4.  Whenever service has been d isco n nected for nonpayment of a b i l l ,  
before recon nection is made the customer1 shal l  pay the recon nection 
fee establ ished in  the util ity's rate schedules; make a deposit pursuant 
to sectio n  69-09-02-04 if al l  or a part of the previ ou s  deposit was used 
in settlement of the delinquent bi l l ;  and make a s atisfactory settlement 
for the del inquent bill and for service rendered between the last meter 
reading d ate and the date service was d iscon necte d .  

5. I n  the event the customer d isputes the amount of a bi l l  for service, 
the customer may, to prevent d iscon nection for nonpayment, pay the 
d isputed bi l l  under protest to the util ity. Alternatively, the customer may 
request a formal hearing pursuant to section 69-02-02-02 in wh ich case 
the util ity s h a ll n ot d iscon nect service for n o npayment of the d isputed 
bi l l  until  a fin a l  decision has been issued by the commission .  The util ity 
shal l  immediately g ive the commission n otice of the d ispute and the 
commission may investigate the· d ispute. The util ity shal l  refund to the 
customer any part of such payment made u nder protest found by the 
commission to be excessive. 

6. A util ity may not d isconnect service to a customer for fai lure of the 
customer to pay for merchand ise purch ased from the util ity; to pay for 
a different class of service furn ished by the uti l ity ; to pay for service 
rendered to a previous occupant of the premises ; or to pay the bi l l  of 
a nother customer as guarantor thereof. 

7.  A util ity may d iscontinue service to a customer for fa i lure to comply 
with regulation s  of the util ity on file with the commission pertain ing 
to insta llation and operation of  uti l ization equipment, or  for use of 
equipment w h ich interferes with , or adversely affects , the service 
to other customers , provided the customer h a s  first been n otified 
and afforded reasonable opportun ity to change or disconnect such 
equipment. 

8 .  A utility may d iscontinue service to a customer upon ten days' written 
n otice if the meter or other equipment installed by the util ity has been 
tampered with , or if there has been a d iversion of service, or if the 
customer is uti l izing gas before the energy has passed through a meter 
installed by the util ity. 

9. When a customer who has tenants is includ i n g  the cost of util ity 
services in the rent charged and the util ity bi l l  becomes del inquent, 
the util ity before d isconnecting service must also n otify the ten ants in 
writin g  at least ten days prior to the proposed termination date. The 
util ity must al low each tenant to apply to become the customer of 
the util ity in  the tenant's own name, to have the service to the rental 
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facil ity contin ued or resu med, and to pay the pro rata share of future 
bi l ls .  Such tenant-customer shall be subject to all the provisions of th is 
chapter. 

1 0. A util ity may not discontinue service to a customer for n onpayment of a 
deposit. 

H istory: Effective October 1 ,  1 98 0 ;  amended effective May 1 ,  1 996; J u ly 1 ,  1 997; 

April  1 ,  200 1 ; January 1 ,  2002. 

Genera l  Authority: N DCC 49-02-1 1 

Law I m plemented: N DCC 49-02- 1 1  

69-09-01 -1 9. Extensions of service. 

1 .  The util ity shall make al l  extensions to its mains and services where the 
investment is ju_stified by the anticipated revenue to be received . 

2. I n  the event the util ity does not bel ieve that the extension is justified, 
the com m ission shall ,  when so req uested by one or more prospective 
customers desiring such extension and upon proper heari ng ,  determine 
whether or n ot such extension should be made, and shal l  determine the 
respective amounts that the prospective customer or customers and the 
util ity shall pay. 

3 .  When s o  req uested b y  a prospective customer engaged in the operatio n  
o f  a l icensed trailer court for month-to-month parking o f  mobile h o mes, 
the util ity shall make extension to its mains and services, subject to 
the provisions of subsections 1 and 2, to provide natural gas service 
throu g h  a master meter installed in a location with in the confines of 
the mobile trailer court. The trai ler court operator shall have service 
facil ities to individual trailer parking locations wh ich the operator shall  
own and maintain constructed .by competent and q ualified persons, 
and shall arrange for i nspection by and approval from a responsible 
inspector to assure that the service facil ities fro m  the meter location to 
the mobile h ome locations and gas service facil ities and appliances to 
and with in mobile homes to be served comply with piping and appliance 
ordinances or req uirements of applicable ru les and reg u lations of any 
authority vested with j urisdiction of the subject matter. 

General  Authority: N DCC 49-02-1 1 

Law Im plemented : N DCC 49-02- 1 1  

69-09-01 -20. Information to customers. A uti lity shall :  

1 .  Keep copies of its rate s chedules, r u les, and reg u lations on file in every 
office where payments are received. 

1 2  
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Section 
6 9-09-02-0 1 
69-09-02-02 
69-09-02-02. 1  
69-09-02-03 

69-09-02-04 
6 9-09-02-05 
69-09-02-05. 1 

69-09-02-06 

69-09-02-07 

69-09-02-08 

69-09-02-09 

69-09-02-1 0 
69-09-02- 1 1 
69-09-02-1 2 

69-09-02-1 3  

69-09-02-1 4  

69-09-02-1 5  

69-09-02-1 6  

6 9-09-02-1 7  

69-09-02-1 8  

69-09-02-1 9  

69-09-02-20 

69-09-02-2 1 
69-09-02-22 

69-09-02-23 

69-09-02-24 
69-09-02-25 

69-09-02-26 

69-09-02-27 

69-09-02-28 
69-09-02-29 
69-09-02-30 
69-09-02-:3 1 

69-09-02-32 
69-09-02-33 

69-09-02-34 

69-09-02-35 

69-09-02-36 

69-09-02-37 
69-09-02-38 
69-09-02-39 

C HAPTER 69-09-02 
STA N DA RDS OF SERVICE - ELECTRIC _ 

Rates and Regulations to be Filed 
I nformation Available to Customers [Superseded] 
I nformation to C ustomers 
Service Connections 
Deposits and Guarantees 
Discontinuance of Service [Superseded] 
Discontinuance of Electric Service 
Conti n u ity of Service 
Extension of Service 
Tem porary Service 
C ustomer Complaints 
M eter Readings 
Bi l l ing 
Adjustment of Bi l l  for Meter Errors 
Refunds and Deficiency Bi l l ings 
Classification of Service 
Resale and Submetering 
Measuring Customer Service 
Standard Frequency 
Standard Voltage and Allowable Variation 
Voltage Measurement and Voltage Records 
Accuracy of Portable Indicating Instruments 
Accuracy of Watt-Hour Meters 
Accuracy of Demand Meters 
M u ltipliers and Test Constants 
I nstrument Transformers 
M eter Testing Equipment 
M eter Testing 
Determination of Average Meter Error 
M eter Records 
Locatio n  of Meters 
Publ ic I nterest 
Cooperation 
Adva nce Notice 
Principle of Least Cost 
Location of Lines 
I n sta l lation and Maintenance - Conformance to National 

Electrical Safety Code 
Raising and Lowering Electric Supply and Communication 

Lines 
Electric Master Metering Prohibited - Exception 
Advertising by Electric Utilities 
Automatic Adjustment Clauses 
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the util ity or a change i n  location covered by the guarantee agreement 
or  th irty days after written req uest for termi n ation is made to the utility 
by the guarantor. However, no agreement may be terminated without 
the customer h aving made ·satisfactory settlement for any balance 
whi c h  the customer owes the util ity. Upon termination of a g uarantee 

· co ntract a new contract or a cash deposit m ay be required by the util ity. 

H istory :  Amen ded effective April 1 ,  1 985. 
Genera l  Autho rity: N DCC 49-02-1 1 
Law I m plemented : N DCC 49-02-1 1 

69-09-02-05. D iscontinuance of setvice. Superseded by section 
6 9-09-02-05. 1 .  

69-09-02-05.1 .  Discontinuance of electric seryice.� , · · et r  ·�·\�: \ .r� '') -� , .;  1 

1 .  A uti l ity may d isconnect service if the customer is delinquent in  payment 
for services rendered. However, no utility shal l  discontinue service to a 
customer for fai lure to pay for such service u ntil the util ity shal l  first h ave 
g iven the customer notice of its i ntention to d iscontinue s uch service o n  
account o f  delinquency. The notice shal l :  

a .  Be sent by first-class mai l  addressed to the customer at the p lace 
where service is rendered, except that in the case of residential . 
customers s ixty-five years of age or older, or for handicapped 
customers, personal notice by delivery is required. A copy of each 
n otice must a lso be mailed to the nearest social service office and 
to any other appropriate financial assistance agency, provid ing 
that prior approval has been g iven by the ·customer pursuant to 
s ubsection 2. 

b. S how the amount of the delinquency. 

c .  I n cl ude the telephone number of  the publ ic service commission.  

d .  Advise the customer of the customer's rights and remedies, 
i ncluding,  but not l imited to , the right of the customer to stay 
termination for up to thirty days if the customer advises the util ity 
with in the ten-day notice period that dangerous health conditions 
exist or that the customer is sixty-five years of age or older or that 
the customer is handicapped. In addition,  the notice shal l  advise 
the customer of the customer's right  to work out a satisfactory 
deferred instal lment agreement for del inquent accounts and of the 
opportunity to enter into equal monthly payment plans for future 
service. 

e. I nform the customer that service will be d iscontinued if the 
d elinquent account is not paid with in ten calendar days from the 
d ate of mailing or personal delivery of the notice, or if a satisfactory 
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instal lment agreement is not made with the uti l ity for payment of 
the del inquent bi l l .  

If  the customer e lects to enter into a deferred i nstal l ment agreement for 
del inquent accounts, service may not be termi nated; h owever, the util ity 
may discontinue service without further notice if the customer fai ls to pay 
the del inq uent account on or before the date s pecified in the n otice, or 
in  accordance with the deferred installment agreement. The customer 
shal l  h ave the privi lege of paying the del inquent a ccount at any t ime 
prior to the actual d isconnection of service, and the person directed by 
the uti l i ty to make the d isconnection shall be deemed authorized and 
sha l l  accept payment of  the delinq uent account i f  tendered to  the person 
by the customer before actual disconnection of  service is made. 

2. I t  shal l  be the responsibi l ity of al l  residential customers s ixty� five years 
of age o r  older, handicapped, or having an emergency medical problem 
in  the h ousehold, including l ife-sustaining appl iances, such as kidn ey 
d ialysis,  to n otify the uti l ity of such status. To assist i n  such n otificatio n ,  
al l  uti l ities shal l  annually i nclude a preaddressed postage-paid postcard 
in the monthly bi l l ing mailed to all residential customers during the b i l l ing 
period ending October first. Such notice shal l  a lso be p rovided to a l l  n ew 
customers i n  that service area when they are first p rovided service by 
the uti l ity. 

The postcard shal l  include the fol lowing q uestions: 

1 .  Is  any member of your household 65 years of age or o lder, 
or handicapped? 

2. Do you h ave a ny emergency medical problem in your 
household? 

3. Do you desire that the area social service office or  oth e r  
appropriate financial assistance agency b e  notified in  t h e  
event o f  a proposed d isconnect? 

4. Do you desire that some other third party be 
contacted in  the event of a d isco n nect? If 
so, name and address of person ___ _ 

5. If  you are having difficu lty paying your util ity bil l ,  p lease 
contact our local service representative or business office 
so that we can work with you on your problem. 

Util ity Telephone Number _______ _ 
Office Add ress --------------
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Date __ _ Name __________________ _ 
Add ress ----------------

Signature 

3. Service shall  not be disconnected under this section on weekends, 
Frid ays, state hol idays, the day before a state hol id ay, or  after 
twelve noon on any day. A report describing the total number of 

. actua l  d isconnects, date and time, type of customer, and amount of 
del inq uency for each d isconnected customer shal l  be fi led monthly with 
the commission withi n  ten days after the last day of each month. 

4. Whenever service has been disconnected for nonpayment of a bi l l ,  
before reconnection is made the customer shal l  pay the reconnection 
fee established jn. the util ity's rate schedules; make a deposit pursuant 

· to section 69-09-02-04 if a l l  or a part of the previous de'posit was used 
in settlement of the del inquent bi l l ;  and make a satisfactory settlement 
for the del inquent bill and for service rendered between the last meter 
reading date and the date service was disconnected. 

5. In the event the customer d isputes the amount of a bi l l  for se1vice, 
the customer may, to prevent disconnection for nonpayment, pay the 
disputed bi l l  under protest to the uti l ity. Alternatively, the customer may 
req u est a formal hearing pursuant to section 69-02-02-02 i,n which case 
the uti l ity shal l  not discon nect service for nonpayment of the disputed 
bi l l  u nti l  a final decision has been issued by the commission. The util ity 
shal l  immediately give the commission notice of the dispute, and the 
comm ission may investigate ·the dispute. The util ity shal l  refund to the 
customer a ny part of such payment made under protest found by the 
comm ission to be excessive. 

6.  .A uti l ity may not  disconnect service to a customer for fa i lure of  the 
customer to pay for merchandise purchased from the utility; to pay for 
a different class of service furnished by the util ity; to pay for service 
rendered to a previous occupant of.the premises; or to pay the bi l l  of 
another customer as guarantor thereof. 

7. A util ity may discontinue service to a customer for fa i lure to comply 
with regulations of the uti l ity on fi le with the commission pertaining 
to instal lation and operation of utilization equipment, or  for use of 
equipment which interferes with , or adversely affects, the service 
to other customers, provided the customer has first been notified 
and afforded reasonable opportunity to change or disconnect such 
eq uipment. 

8 .  A uti l i ty may discontinue service to a customer u p o n  ten days' written 
notice if the meter or other equipment instal led by the. utility has been 
tampered with, or  if there has been a diversion of service, or if the 
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customer is utilizing electricity before the energy has passed through 
a m eter installed by the uti lity. 

9 .  When a customer who h a s  tenants i s  i ncluding t h e  cost o f  util ity 
services in the rent charged and the util ity bi l l  becomes delinquent, 
the util ity before d isconnecting service m ust also notify the tenants in 
writin g  at least ten days prior to the proposed termi nation date. The 
util ity must al low each tenant to apply to become the customer of 
the utility in the tenant's own name, to h a ve the service to the rental 
facil ity continued or  resumed, and to pay the pro rata share of future 
bi l ls .  Such tenant-customer shall  be subject to al l  the provisions of this 
chapter. 

1 0. A util ity may not discontinue service to a customer for nonpayment of a 
d eposit. 

History: Effective October 1 ,  1 980; amended effective M ay 1 ,  1 996;  July 1 ,  1 997; 
April 1 ,  200 1 ; J a nuary 1 ,  2002. 

· 

General  Authority: N DC C  49-02-1 1  

Law Implemented: NDCC 49-02-1 1  

69-09-02-06. Continuity of service. 

1 .  Each utility shal l  make every reasonable effort to prevent interruptions 
of service, and when · such interruptions occur s h a ll endeavor to 
reestablish service within the shortest p ossible time. Whenever the 
service is necessarily interrupted or curta i led for the p u rpose of working 
on equipment, it shal l  be done at a time which, if at  al l  practica-ble,  
wil l  cause the least inconvenience to customers, except in cases of 
emergency. 

2 .  E a c h  utility shal l  keep a record o f  al l  interruptions t o  service affectin g  
t h e  entire d istribution system o f  any single community or  an important 
d ivision of a community, and include in the record the d ate and time of 
interruption, the date and time service was restored, and,  if known, the 
cause of each interruption. Service i nterruption records shall be kept 
for a period of six years. 

General Authority: NDCC 49-02- 1 1  
Law Implemented :  NDCC 49-02- 1 1  

69-09-02-07. Extension of service. 

1 .  I t  shal l  be the obligation of each uti l ity to make reasonable extensions 
of its l ines and services to new customers within any a re a  in which it is 
authorized to serve. 
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l 2  ) Senat e  I B 1 Commi t t e e 

Senat e  Bill No 2 1 7 4 

Twin City Estates & Wildwood M H P  

3001 Twin City Drive 

Mandan ND 58554 

701-663-7066 

January 18th, 2013 

To whom it may concern : 

M D U  was a lways great at n otifying us with a phone ca l l  a bout res i d e nts that were 

having their gas or e lectricity shut off, whether o r  not we owned the home o r  the res ident 

owned the home. With that information, we were able to contact the own ers of the homes a n d  
point t h e m  i n  t h e  right d i rections to get h e l p  getting their  b i l l  pa id, such as  Socia l  Services, 

Com m u n ity Action, a n d  A I D  Inc .  With t h at information, residents were ab le to prevent any 

major d amage to their  homes, such as  freeze u p s  and pipes b re a king, and w e  were ab le  to 

prevent any p ipes breaking in the grou n d  in either of our parks . About 90% of the t ime, 

residents q u a l ified for these services a n d  were able to keep their  ut i l ities o n .  

I n  J u n e  of 2012, w e  h a d  o n e  o f  t h e  parks homes completely s h ut off from service 

without any notice, a n d  with winter coming in a couple  of months, we conta cted M D U  to fin d  

out why we were not n otified . A representative from M D U  said they n o  longer contact t h e  

owne r, j ust the person renting i t .  T h e  same situation h appened aga in  i n  October o f  2012.  

N ow that t h e  winter m o n t h s  a re here, I have 2 homes located in  W i l d wood M H P  that 

had their  uti l ities sh ut off and we were not notified . I n  both homes the p ipes froze a n d  b roke 
leaving very extens ive d amage. The owners of the home have a b a n do n ed t h e m  now leaving us 

to fo l low o u r  proce d u res by removing the homes a n d  absorbing the costs to d o  so. Inc lud ing 
the costs to fix anything that may b e  broken with our pipes in  the gro u n d .  

I n  Ju ly  of 2012, w e  received a contin uous service agreement from M D U .  W e  fi l led i t  o u t  

a n d  sent i t  back in .  Later in  t h e  fa l l  w e  received another agreement t h at w e  fi l led  o u t  as wel l .  

Si.nce then, w e  have not received a n y  not ifications from M D U  for a n y  homes that h ave h a d  a 
change in their  services, inc lud ing o u r  own homes. 

Park M a n agers, 

Scott & N i kki Webb 
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January 2 1 , 20 1 3  

To : Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee 

Re: Senate Bill 2 1 74 

Our company manages Tatley Meadows Mobile Home Park in Bismarck. This park ! 
consists of 3 62 homes which are owned by the occupants as the park does not have rental 
units. The occupants rent the land site from the park which rental includes a variet� of 
services. One of the services provided is that Tatley Meadows owns the water system 
throughout the entire park; and provides the water to each of the occupants. The cost of 
the water and the maintenance of the. general system is the responsibility of Tatley 
Meadows. 

Each individual homeowner has a heating system which uses electricity to protect tlie 
individual water connection from freezing up. If the electric service fails there is a strong 
possibility that the water connection will freeze up during winter weather, damaging both 
the connection to the homeowner and also some part of the total system. This could! 
affect the service to other homeowners, and has in the past when the problem has 
occurred. It also can result in thousands of dollars of expenses for the repair of the frozen 
pipes, particularly when the repair work needs to take place in severe winter weathet. 

If Tatley Meadows was notified in advance of a proposed disconnection of electric 
service it would take prompt action to see the disconnection did not take place. This 
would save both the homeowner and Tatley Meadows from the possibility of large costs 
for pipe repair. In the past Tatley Meadows received courtesy calls from the utility 
company but these have been discontinued. 

Senate Bill 2 1 74 seeks to address this problem, giving protection to both the resident and 
the landlord. It does appear to be impractical to think that authorization for disclosure 
can be obtained from every resident, whether in a mobile home park or apartments. We 
think it would be more realistic to provide that notice must be given where there is a 
continuous service agreement in effect between the utility company and the landlord. 

Thank you for your consideration of our comments. 

�AT::if�� 
' 

Myr�tkinson, Jr. � 
P.O. Box 1 1 76 · Dalwta Northwestern Building, Suite 103 · Bismarck, ND 58502-1 1 76 · Tel: 701-223- 1 525 · Fax: 701 -224- 1 5 7 1 

emai 1: atkco@theathi nsoncornpany.com 



My n a m e  is Vi nce Sanders, General  M a n ager fo r VCZ, I nc. I have held this positio n ma naging 3 mobi le  

home pa rks (380 s ites) for ove r 20 years. We have 90 p l us renta ls that VCZ owns, a n d  we use to have a 

l a nd l ord agreement p lan  on each of the m .  I 
Late summ er o r  ea rly fa l l  we received a lette r from M D U  asking for us to sign a new 'Contin uo u s  

Service Agreem e nt'. This o n e  meant that if someone fa i led t o  p a y  i t  wo uld  a uto m atica l ly  g o  i nto VCZ's 

n a m e  a n d  the o n ly notice we would get wo u l d  be on the next b i l l ing  cycle. 

For  years VCZ has a lways had cl ose contact with M DU col lections dept and have never, i n  my 20+ y rs 

h ave h a d  M DU ever shut off a tena nt' uti l ities whi le being on the 'Origin a l  La n d l o rd Agreement P l a n ' .  

They were never d iscon nected without notify ing us first. VCZ h a s  a lways helpe d  m a ke contact a n d  

enco u raged ten a nt with letters t o  get i n  a n d  p a y  b i l l ,  i f  they needed help-w here t o  g o  t o  a pply fo r fuel 

a ssista nce, ect . .  This a lways was benefici a l  fo r M D U  and us as land lords. Why in the world wo u l d  yo u 

cha nge this  now-it wo rks. 

We have not signed the new La ndlord Service Agreement this yea r beca use it is  not right, p l a i n  a n d  

s i m ple.  This is h u rting everyo ne a nd n o t  a cco m p l ish ing a thing.  

O n  1 1/09/20 12, M D U shut off one of our renta l un its at 716 W Sweet Ave #13 at a p prox. 3:30 p m .  If 

my m a i ntenance m a n  had not seen the truck there and notified me, it wo uld  h a ve been left off and the 

home would have been froze up by eve n i ng a nd busted water pipes. We ca l led M D U  whi le the Service 

Tech was sti l l  the re, b ut by the time we got t h rough to a 'human' he was gone. We were then charged 

$ 120.00 before the tech cou l d  return and turn the uti l ities back on. This is neither fa i r  nor norma l 

practice for the M D U  Co mpany that we o nce knew, had they ca l l ed us regarding that home, it would 

have avo ided any ca l l  outs and we would have had them put it i n  our  name right away, l ike we h ave 

been d o i ng for 20 p lus  years. 

Vince Sanders-Genera l M a nager 

VCZ, I nc.  



Date: J a n u a ry 21st 2013 

To: The N o rth Da kota I ndustry, Business and Labor Comm ittee 

From:  Van Raden Properties, I nc. 

402 35th Avenue North 

Fargo, ND 58102 

We feel t hat it is i m perative that util ity companies notify the landlord prior to cutting off power to 

any property. The damages which may occur wil l  cause undue hardship to property affected, other 

tenants on or in the property and excessive repair  costs for the owner of such properties. 

In a manufactured home park one home can be the cause of a water riser freeze up which may break 

and cause a river of water to flow down the street. The repair  for broken water riser requ i res the use 

of a commercial backhoe, rifanpower and new parts. It also requi res the shutd own of the water main 

which wil l  affect everyone connected to that water main. I n  a n  a pa rt ment, duplex or condo 

com m u n ity a water freeze up wil l  require t hat the water to be shut down, plumbing repairs, ceiling 

and wa l l  repair, carpet and vinyl damage and the disruption and sometimes loss of property of the 

other tena nts affected by a water l ine freeze up. 

M DU's a rgument that customer's i nformation should be confidential has l ittle merit. Landlords 

already have al l  of the information protected by the Safe Act. What we have here is a total disregard 

for tenants and property owners who do pay their util ity bil ls.  

As owners of property that affects many tenants we hope that the I nd u st ry, Business and Labor 

Committee will help all of the util ity buyers of this state and protect them fro m  the hardships that will 

be caused by a change in North Dakota Law. 

Si ncerely 

Glenn Bender 



eartl4nd 849 South Main Street - Dickinson NO - 701 .227.0519 
V I L L A G E 

Monday, January 2 1 , 201 3 

Mr. Chairmen and Senate Committee 

Our company owns and operates a 600-lot manufactured community in Dickinson, ND. 

We've been told that Montana Dakota Utilities will no longer notify community owners if they are 

going to turn utilities off until we receive the next bill. Some of our colleagues have expressed 

concerns about this issue and have asked for our support to Senate bil1 2 1 74 requiring that a public 

utility company provides advance notice of disconnection of electric and gas service. 

We believe advance notice of disconnection would be beneficial therefore we ask for your 

support of Senate bill 2 1 74. 

Sincerely, 

G. Avaro 



J a n u a ry 20, 2013 

Re : B i l l  2 174 

Dear  M e m b e rs of the Senate I n d ustria l  Busi ness a n d  Labor  Com mittee; 

I u rge you to s u pport and encourage passage of B i l l  2 174 requ esting a n d  req u i ring that those 

p u bl ic uti l it ies regu lated by the Publ ic  Service Comm ission p rovide a 10 Day Adva nce Written 

N otification of I ntent to Discon nect or Termi nate E lectric or Gas Service. 

In North Da
'
kota w h e re wi nters can be severe, a lack of h eat can affect water p i p es, �ater l i n es, 

structu res, a n d  even uti l ity access points.  I bel ieve it would be wise, cons iderate a n d  even 

p reventative to have th is as pol icy for p u b l ic ut i l it ies. I bel ieve it would be in the best interest 

of a l l  p a rties for proper not ification to be given in  advance.  

Th is shou ld  b e  sent to the customer and to the own er or  man ager when a th i rd p a rty is  

involve d .  As a l a n d lord, I wou l d  be wi l l ing  to pay a smal l  fee to help defray t h e  cost of a 10 Day 

Advance Notificatio n .  

Th a n king you i n  adva nce for your consideration a n d  support of this b i l l , 

H e rman Kesterke 

3005 East Ave n u e  E 

B ismarck, N D  58501 



My name is Daniel Berg and I reside at 2625 62nd St SE, Minot, North Dakota. I am a 
homeowner, property manager for a rental company, have rental properties of my own, and 
owner of the Gold Nugget Park in Minot. I also am a HUD Installation inspector for the State of 
North Dakota. 

MDU has been very good in the past, but service has deteriated greatly. I understand the 
complications of the flood in Minot and the economy, but it has affected us all .  

I just went through a situation i n  the park (not mine) where no notification was given and the 
plumbing in the house was completely frozen up because of the gas being shut off (renter had 
left). It is being repaired at this moment and I do not know the extent of damages at this time. 
This not only affects the home but could ultimately freeze up the water going into the ground 
which in turn would affect the park (luckily it was caught in time). 

All I am asking for as an owner/manager is a notification which would avert all these probl ems. 

Thank You, 

Dan B erg 

(_ 3) 



NEIDERHARDT MOBILE HOME & RV PARK 
Between Second and Third Street South 

at Spruce Avenue, P.O. Box 2 1 1 ,  New Salem, ND 58563-02 1 1  
on the OLD RED/OLD TEN SCENIC BYWAY 

701-220-7710 

Faye (Neidhardt) Sanders Owner/Manager 
Est. 1 964 by Paul and Feme Neidhardt 

January 22, 20 1 3  

Testimony in support of SENATE B ILL No. 2 1 74 

Presented to the Senate Industry Business and Labor Committee 

Re: Advance Notification by Public Utilities Regulated by the Public Service Commission. 

I am the owner and landlord of the mobile home property described in the following 
example. On September 25, 20 1 2  I happened to be driving past 209 South Third Street in 
New Salem, the home of a tenant, referred to as Mr. Tenant, when I observed an MDU 
company truck at that address. Mr. Tenant stopped me and informed me that MDU was 
disconnecting his service. Mr. Tenant has five children under the age of twelve years with 
his four year old son being a severe epileptic. His 34 year old wife also had a heart attack 
requiring three recitations while being transported to the hospital via ambulance. Stints 
were surgically placed to correct the blockage. They do not have medical insurance. 

Mr. Tenant was unable to pay his utility bill that month because of medical expenses 
recently incurred on behalf of his wife and epileptic son including ambulance calls. He 
asked me to advance him money to keep his utilities on for their home which I did. 

Subsequently, Mr. Tenant has reimbursed me for his MDU bill and continues to keep 
current on his MDU bill. Discontinuing their utilities during such critical times would have 
been detrimental to this family. 

As the owner of the mobile home park I feel it is vital that MDU be able to inform me in 
advance of any discontinuance of service. Just think of what the consequences might have 
been if this had occurred in December rather than September such as frozen water l ines 
which would have meant loss of service to all tenants, not just one home. Advance 
notification is vital. 

Lack of customer service is unforgivable. 

Faye Sanders 
Owner/Manager 



Pat:rick Wachte.t 
PO Box 838 
Bismi\.Cck ND 58502 

To: The Sen�te 'l.O.d Induat1:y Buslo.ess &. La.bo.t:: 

RE: No Nodflca-don by 1.1tllity ptovider of service beln.g C\\t·off. (gas and/ ot. el.ectdc) 
W.intl!ll:; withO\tt any notic:c wate.t pip� nod r.ise1:e f�:ee.ze. We hnve no way of k.nowJ.ng 

tb�t. tb.lll t�etV'ice b.u been tetminated u.ntll wa.tel: is flooding out of the ground 
�d./ ot .tUM.io.g out the door of a home. This can be \'CI:Y cot�tl.y, bot.b it� ti.tne 
and money to 2:epail;. To r.epilir the dnmage or break the water h�$ 1:0 be shut 
off for houts cl,� the .tepah: .results in n hnr.dahiJ? f.oJ: othel.' cesi.d.el.1 ts and 
dt�.11ger be�U5e the.re is nQ wntc.t a'Y'WQble fox 6.r.e pr.otac:t\on, 

Su.tnm.er: - ill a p�t e-xpetience when the clcetdcit.y w�a tllt.o.ed off in. oo.e of ouJ: 
11pm:ttncnt..s, a r.om.gsr.«.tor W(l.� l:\l.int>od d\le to the rotten food 111nell tb�.t could 
not be elircinP.ted Ctom the ht$ide of the unit. The refrlgex:ato: had to be 
l!epli!.ccd. 

To ptotect olu: �topercy,, we feel it � vE:r.y itnportru:lt th11.t tho udlily pro'lidcr n��tifics U$ of 1.1. 

potcnt.ihl Ahut. of£. 

Owne.t o 

Ai.tport. V.illt�gc Mobile Home Pru:k 
Mendow Ridge Ap�tments 
River.pmt:e .1\pnJ:to:lents 
Wi.n.dsor Sto.t('.ge & Heated Shop$ 

( g)  



WOODRIDG E/ED G EV I EW ESTATES 
1 51 0  1 61h St SW #21 1  
Minot, N O  58701 

Phone (701 ) 838-0294 
Fax (701 ) 839-31 72 

1/2 1/2013 

D e a r  I n d ustry B us i ness and La bor, 

1 have rece ntly been made aware of Senate B i l l  2 1 74. It appears that if B i l l  2 1 7 4  s h o u l d  pass that  ut i l ity 

co m pa n ies  co u l d  t u r n  off an i n d iv idua l 's  ut i l i t ies  d u e  to non-payment witho u t  notify i ng t h e  

o w n e rs/m a nagers of  the m a n ufactured h o u s i ng p ro pe rty. 

Th is  is n e ither  a fa i r  nor  norm a l  p ract ice.  If  t h i s  b i l l  for some reason should p a ss, we need to be notified  

a t  l e a st 10 days  i n  advance to e l i m i nate d a mages to o u r  properties.  The d a m a ges t h a t  cou ld  potenti a l ly 

occu r by t u rn i ng off ut i l it ies to an i nd iv i d u a l  m a n ufa ct u red home wo uld  not o n ly cause severe 

r e p e rcussions to the home's owner, but  a lso cause costly da mage to the l a n d  owne r' s  p ro p e rty. 

We have a lways h a d  a very good relat io n s h i p  with the ut i l ity companies in o u r  a rea in t h e  past, a n d  I 

w o u l d  h a te for t h a t  to change.  I bel ieve that  if B i l l  2 174 were to pass that it wo u l d  cause a stra i n  o n  

eve ryone that is i nvolved. 

S i n c e re ly, 

M a n a g e r  

Wood ridge/Edgeview Estates 
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MDU RE S OURC E S  G ROUP, I NC.  

We are a member of the S&P Mid Cap 400 
index. We provide value-added natural 
resource products and related services that 
are essential to energy and transportation 
infrastructure, including regulated utilities 
and pipelines, exploration and production, 
and construction materials and services 
companies. 

201 1  Earnings* 

Regulated 

40% 

Exploration & 
Production 

36% 

• Based on consolidated earnings before discontinued operations. 
• •  Includes Other operations of 3 percent. 

Construction** 

24% 



Prepared by M ichael J G a rdner 

For Montana-Dakota Util ities Co. 

Testimony on SB 2174 

SB 2 174 would req uire M onta na-Dakota and other regulated public uti l ities to provide ten d ays written 

notice to a th ird person d esignated by a customer prior to discontinua nce of util ity service to the 

customer. The bi l l  is  largely in response to Montana-Da kota's d iscontinua nce a b o ut six m onths ago of 

a n  informal  practice in some locatio ns of giving such notice to landlords prior to d iscontinua nce of 

service to the landlord's tena nt. Monta na-Dakota is opposed to SB 2 174 for the same reasons it  

d iscontinued that practice. 

Up until  a bout six months ago, personnel  from some of Montana-Da kota's col lection offices p rovided 

(or attem pted to provide )  a perso nal co ntact to landlords or property managers prior to d isco n necting 

util ity service to a tenant of their property. Because of the time being spent o n  this practice and to 

avoid customer privacy concerns·, Montana-Dakota d isconti nued this informa l  practice and instea d  

updated, fo rmal ized a n d  made ava i lable t o  landlords of rental properties t h e  Contin uous Service 

Agreement ("CSA") attached hereto as a way to prevent the pote ntia l  p roperty d a m age the prior 

informal p ractice was intended to address. U nder the CSA, the landlo rd agrees that in  the event of a 

d iscontin u a nce of util ity service to a ten a nt of the landlord's property, a nd un less indicated otherwise by 

the landlord, util ity service wil l  be a utom atica l ly tra nsferred to the land lord's acco unt to prevent 

disconnectio n of service a nd potential d a m age to the l a nd lord's property. The CSA, l ike the p rior 

practice, is offered as a courtesy to land lords without charge . Unl ike the prior practice, the landlord 

does not receive adva nce notice of the d iscontinua nce and some of the landlords were unha p py that 

they would no longer receive the adva nce notice . 

. It's im porta nt to note that regulated P u blic Uti l ities a re a l ready subject to rules a d m i n istered by each 

state's Publ ic Service Com m issio n rega rding when and how they can d isconnect e lectric or natura l  gas 

service. For example, the rule governing d isconti nua nce of electric service in  N orth Da kota req uires at 

least 10 days written notice ( unless the customer is over 65 years of age or ha ndica p ped in which case 

the notice m ust be delive red in  perso n )  before disconnection and pro h i bits d iscon nection after noon, or 

on a Friday, weekend, hol iday, or a day before a holiday. The ru le a lso req uires the uti l ity to provide 

information on the custom e r's rights and remedies, amo ngst other p rovisions. A similar rule exists fo r 

natural gas d iscon nections. In addition to the state rules, Montana-Da kota a lso has internal policies 
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rega rding turn offs. For exa m p le, we take weather conditions into co nsideration before d isco n necting 

service in the winter months. 

One of the reasons Montana-Da kota d iscontinued the practice of providing prior notice was the 

resou rces involved in attempting to contact the landlords p rior to a d isco n nection.  SB 2 174 would m a ke 

the situation even worse. Monta na-Da kota sent out 181,883 disconnection notices in 2012, a n  average 

of over 15,000 per month syste m  wide. I n  most insta nces the account is paid or a payment 

a rrangement is reached and service is not d isconnected. Last yea r  the actual  n u m ber of M o nta na­

Dakota util ity d iscon nections was 5,049 or only2.8 percent of the nu mber of d isconnect notices. S B  2174 

would req uire Monta na-Dakota to send out simi lar ten day notices to the d esignated third p a rties. N ot 

only is there significant expense for this service, but it will  undoubtedly lead to cal ls to tena nts from 

their land lords for acco u nts that would not have been discon nected beca use the tenant brings the 

acco u nt current prior to the d isco n nection date or enters into a reasonable payment arrange m e nt for 

the a mount in a rrears. 

Another reason that Montana-Dakota d iscontinued the pra ctice of p rovid ing a dva nce notice to land lords 

is a concern regarding customer p rivacy. Montana-Da kota genera l ly does not re lease any i nformation 

regarding a customer's records to a third pa rty, i nclud ing law enforcement agencies, without a 

subpoena . We rea l ized that by p rovid ing notice to a landlord of an intended discon nection to a tena nt, 

Monta na-Dakota was essentia l ly revea ling that the customer was del inq uent a n d  violating its own 

practice of protecting customer a ccount information. SB 2174 tries to add ress this privacy issue by 

providing that the customer m ust p rovide a n  a uthorization for d isclosure . We h ave serious concerns 

whether these a uthorizations would be truly vol untarily. We a lso bel ieve, consistent with a req u i rement 

of the Fair  Debt Col lection Act, that t hese authorizations should co me directly from the customer a nd 

not through the landlord .  The Fair  Debt Col lectio n Act (15 USC § 1692c (b) )  pro h ibits a debt co l lecto r 

from communicating with a person other tha n the consumer "without the p rior consent of the 

consumer given directly to the d e bt collector''. Although this provision does not a pply to M o nta na­

Da kota in  col lecting its own a ccou nts, we believe it should be a req uirement prio r to giving n otice to a 

landlord .  If this requirement was a d o pted, however, we have concerns of how we would d eterm ine 

whether the a uthorization ca m e  d i rectly from the customer or through the l a nd lord. Other p rovisions 

of the Fair Debt Co l lection Act a re a ppl icable if a land lord attem pts to co l lect m oney owed to M o ntana­

Da kota in  order to prevent a d iscon nection of se rvice; in which case the land lord becomes a d e bt 

co l lector under the Act. The Fair  Debt Col lection Act provides a number of l imitations and p rohibitions 

5 



on what a d ebt col lector can and ca nnot do in col lecting someone else's debt. Even if Montana-Dakota 

is not l iable for violations of the Act by someone e lse, it does not want land lords or a nyone e lse 

col lecting o n  its a ccou nts using practices that could be a violation of the Act. If the customer is having 

tro uble paying their util ity bil l,  the customer is best served having a discussion with the util ity, not with 

their landlord .  The util ity ca n offer more options regarding the a ccount tha n the land lord ca n .  

A util ity's legal a n d  contractual  relationship i s  sole ly with t h e  te nant as t h e  utility's custo mer. To our 

knowledge, no tenant has req uested that we offer this a dvance notice service. SB 2 174 seeks to give 

land lords the rights of a customer without any correspond ing respo nsibility for payment. Any 

req u i rement for a dvance notice of the tena nt's fa i l u re to mainta in util ity service to the landlord's 

property should be im posed by the land lord upon the tenant and not u pon the uti l ity. U nless the 

land lord is wi l l ing to accept responsibil ity for payment of the acco unt in  the event of a del inquency, it 

does not have the rights of a customer under the account. Alternative ly, the l a ndlord can p lace util ity 

se rvice in  the land lord's a ccount to assure contin uous service a n d  recover the cost of util ity service 

di rectly from the tena nt. 

M o ntana-Dakota is not unsympathetic to the landlords' co ncerns of property d a m age in the event of a 

discontinua n ce of util ity service to rental properties. M o ntana-Dakota deve loped the CSA as a n  

a rra ngement t o  p revent da mage t o  such properties. M o ntana-Da kota a lso agreed t o  develop a 

notification system to provide prompt notification to the land lord electron ical ly when service is 

tra nsferred to the land lord's account under the CSA. Altho ugh M onta na-Da kota recognizes that some 

landlords p refers the a dvance notice that was p rovided by certai n  of M onta na-Dakota's offices 

previously, Montana-Dakota does not bel ieve that a law req uiring such notice is in the bests interests of 

it or its custom e rs. 



'V-�9n��-DAKOTA 
A Division of MDU RtJSOUrces Group, Inc. 

In the Community to Serve• 

P.O. Box 7608, Boise, ID 83707-1608 

Phone: (800)-638-3278 · Fax: (701) 323-3104 
Customer Service Hours: 7 AM - 7 PM (M- F) 

www.montana-dakota. com 

Thank you for your interest in Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. Continuous Service Program. 

Enclosed you will find the following documents: 

1 .  CONTINUOUS SERVICE AGREEMENT 
2 .  SERVICE LOCATIO N S  - Exhibit A 
3 .  CONTI NUOUS SERVICE AGREEMENT AUTHORIZATION - Exhibit B 

Please take the time to read the Agreement thoroughly. It is important that you understand and 
act in accordance with each section of the Agreement. After completing the required information 
on all of the applicable forms, sign each where indicated and mail all of the documents back to 
Montana-Dakota Uti l ities Co. in the envelope provided. 

As soon as we receive the documents back from you, we wi l l  process your Agreement and 
return a copy to you for your records. 

• Service must be activated prior to or on the date this Agreement becomes effective. 

• The Agreement provides 12 month continuous service to the Properties between 
tenants, regardless of the t ime of year. Seasonal Agreements wil l  no longer be offered. 

• Read Section 4 regarding disconnection carefully. You must select whether you DO or 
DO NOT request MDU to continue Energy Services if the tenant account at the property 
is discontinued for nonpayment. 

• All additions or deletions to the Bil l ing Information and Exhibit A must be in the form of a 
written notice signed by the Financially Responsible Party. If a manager or agent is 
authorized to act with respect to the Properties, please complete the Continuous Service 
Agreement Authorization (Exhibit B). All of the information can be s canned and sent by 
email to customerservice@mdu.com or faxed to us at 701-323-31 04 .  

• The Agreement must be signed by the Financially Responsible Party for real properties 
described in Exhibit A.  If property management services are used and the Property 
Manager signs the Agreement, the Property Manager assumes financial responsibility 
for Energy Services pursuant to the Agreement. 

If you require additional information or have questions, please call our Customer Service Center 
at the number listed above. 

Sincerely, 

Custome r  Services 



20544(6-12) V.���I�·DAKOTA 
A Division of MDU Resources Group, Inc. 

In the Community to Serve• 

CONTINUOUS SERVICE AG REEMENT 

Scan and return via: 

- E-mail: customerservice @ mdu.com 
- Fax: 1 -701 -323-31 04 or 
- Mall: Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., Attn: Customer Support, PO Box 7608, Boise, I D  83707-1 608 

1. RECITATION. The Undersigned (hereinafter referred to as "Customer") is the Financially Responsible Party (i.e. owner, manager, or otherwise 
financially responsible for the maintenance of the real properties described on Exhibit A hereto (hereinafter referred to as "Properties") which 
may be occupied by others (hereinafter referred to as "Tenants") from time to time. Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. (hereinafter referred to as 
the "Utility") provides Natural Gas and/or Electric services (hereinafter referred to as "Energy Services") to the location of the Properties in 
accordance with the terms of tariffs filed with the state regulatory agency of the jurisdiction in which the Properties are located. The Agreement 
is intended to assure continuous Energy Services to the Properties during periods in which a Tenant has not arranged for or has failed to 
maintain energy services. 

2. IfBM. This Agreement between the Utility and the Customer is effective as of the date (hereinafter referred to as the "Effective Date") that 
it is processed by the Utility. For electronic communication purposes, the Customer must provide an active e-mail address prior to processing. 
Utility will provide e-mail notification that the Agreement has been processed. This Agreement will continue in effect until cancelled by either 
party upon five (5) days prior written notice sent in accordance with Paragraph 5 below. Properties subject to this Agreement must have energy 
services activated prior to or on the Effective Date. Termination of this Agreement does not relieve the Customer from its obligation to pay for 
any Energy Service charges incurred under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. In the event the Customer cancels this 
Agreement with respect to one or more Properties listed on Exhibit A, the Customer will not be eligible to enter another Continuous Service 
Agreement for a period of 12 months with respect to those Properties that were cancelled. Failure on the part of the Customer to pay their bills 
promptly when due shall constitute sufficient grounds for termination of this Agreement by the Utility. 

3. RESPONSIBILITY. The Utility agrees to provide Energy Services at the Properties specified by the Customer between occupancy by tenants, 
regardless of the time of year, until this Agreement is terminated with respect to the properties. The Customer assumes liability for Energy 
Service charges incurred during periods in which a Tenant has not assumed responsibility for payment of Energy Services to the Properties. 

The Utility reserves the right to deny service or disconnect Energy Services pursuant to the rules and regulations of the applicable regulatory 
agency. If a Tenant is denied Energy Service, or Energy Services to the Tenant have been disconnected, the Customer may request that 
the Energy Services to the applicable Property be disconnected without affecting this Agreement. A disconnection of Energy Services to the 
Properties at the request of the Customer for any other reason will terminate the Agreement. 

In the event of a dispute regarding any sums due, the date of discontinuance, or the effective date of Energy Services, the Utility's records 
will be presumed correct unless the Customer presents information showing the Utility's records are incorrect in which event the presumption 
shall no longer apply. 

4. DISCONNECTION. In addition to the above terms of service, if a Tenant account at such a Property is discontinued for Nonpayment of 
Services, 0 I DO 0 I DO NOT request the Utility to continue Energy Services at the Property and bill me for such Energy Services until a 
new Tenant account is opened or I request termination of the Agreement with respect to the Property. These instructions will apply even if the 
Tenant remains in the Property. 

5. CHANGES AND DELETIONS. The Customer agrees to provide PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE to the Utility of any changes in telephone number, 
mailing address, e-mail address or additions and deletions to Exhibit A, Service Property Locations. 
By signing this Agreement as the Customer, it is understood that the Customer is authorized to start or stop Energy Services, make additions 
or deletions of Properties to this Agreement and to enter into this Agreement. Other persons authorized to act on behalf of the Customer under 
this Agreement are shown on Exhibit B which may be amended by Customer upon receipt of written notice by the Utility. 

6. MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior Agreements and 
understandings relating to continuation of Energy Services to any of Customer's properties prior to the effective date of this Agreement. 
The Utility has no further responsibility or liability to the Customer, expressed or implied, for continuation of Energy Services to Customer's 
properties except as set forth herein. 

7. LIABILITY LIMITATION. THE LIABILITY OF THE UTILITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO D IRECT ACTUAL DAMAGES 
OF CUSTOMER NOT TO EXCEED $500 AND NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, 
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY COMMERCIAL LOSS OF ANY KIND (INCLUDING LOSS OF BUSINESS OR PROFIT). THIS 
LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CLAIMS WHETHER BASED ON BREACH OF EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY, INDEMNITY, BREACH 
OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY IN TORT, OR OTHER LEGAL THEORY. 

8. SIGNATURE. This Agreement must be signed by the Customer. If property management services are used and a Property Manager signs 
this Agreement, the Property Manager assumes financial responsibility for Energy Services pursuant to this Agreement. 

BILLING INFORMATION 
(' An asterisk indicates that the information is required for processing.) 

Please Print 

E-mail Address: _________________ _ 
(Enter an active e-mail address for electronic communication purposes) 

Spouse/Partner Name: ----------------

'Billing Address:. _________________ _ 
'City: ________ •state: ____ 'Zip: ____ _ 
'Primary Contact Phone: ( __ ) __ - ----

Cell Phone: ( __ ) ___ - ----

Fax Number: ( __ ) ___ ----

·social Security Number: ---------------­

'Business Tax ID Number: ---------------­
'Emergency Contact Name: --------------­

'Address: --------------------

'City: ________ •state: ____ 'Zip: _____ _ 
'Emergency Phone Number: (___) ----- ------

Employer Name: __________________ _ 
Work Phone: (_) ----- ------

Customer Printed Name: ____________________ _ 
Signature:------------------------- Date: -------------

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

CSA ID #: ____________________ __ Processed By: ------------- Date: ________ _ 
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V.�gWc�·DAKOTA 

Scan and return via: 

A Division of MDV Resources Group, Inc. 

In the Community to Serve"' 

EXHIBIT A 
SERVICE LOCATIONS 

- E-mail:  customerservice @ mdu.com 
- Fax: 1 -701 -323-31 04 or 
- Mail :  Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., Attn: Customer Support, PO Box 7608, Boise, ID 83707-1 608 

IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 
COMPLETE STREET ADDRESS APT. NO. CITY, STATE 

(OFFICE USE ONLY) 

1 .  

2 .  

3 .  

4 .  

5 .  

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

1 0. 

1 1 .  

1 2. 

1 3. 

1 4. 

1 5. 

1 6. 

1 7. 

1 8. 

1 9. 

20. 

Customer Pr inted Name: ______________ _ 

1gnature: -------------------- Date: __________ _ 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

CSA ID #: __________ __ Processed By: __________ __ Date: ______ _ 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2174 

Page 1 ,  line 3 ,  replace "disconnection or termination" with "discontinuance" 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 8 through 1 2  with: 

"Notification before discontinuance of utility service. 

L A public utility shall provide notice to a customer of the util ity' s intention to 

discontinue utility service for payment delinquency in accordance with 

commission rules. 

2 .  A public utility shall provide notice to a third party designated by a customer of 

the utility's intention to discontinue electric or natural gas service to the customer 

for payment delinquency. The customer shall designate the third party on a form 

provided by or approved by the public utility. The public utility may elect to 

provide notice to a designated third party by mail or electronic means. Notice by 

mail shall be made not less than five days prior to discontinuance and notice by 

electronic means shall be made not less than three days prior to discontinuance. A 

public utility shall be immune from civil liability for failing to provide notice or 

providing incorrect notice to a third party of its intent to discontinue utility service 

to a customer." 

Renumber accordingly 

( I )  



TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF 
ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2174 

HOUSE POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS COMMITTEE 
MARCH 7, 2013 

Good afternoon Chairperson Nancy Johnson and members of the House Political 

Subdivisions Committee, for the record my name is Todd D.  Kranda. I am an attorney at 

the Kelsch Law Finn in Mandan and I am representing the North Dakota Manufactured 

Housing Association in support of Engrossed SB 21 74. 

Engrossed SB 21 7 4 is being presented to you in order to clarify that customers of a 

Public Service Commission regulated electric or gas utility are entitled to receive advance 

written notice before disconnection or termination of utility service may occur. In 

addition, there is a provision included within Engrossed SB 21 74 that allows for the 

customer to designate and authorize the disclosure and notification by the gas or electric 

utility to a third party, such as a landlord or owner of the subject property, before the 

disconnection or termination of service occurs. 

Currently, the Public Service Commission, in the North Dakota Administrative 

Code, has provisions for ten day advance notice to customers before termination of 

service; as well as an advance notice to the tenant before service is disconnected if the 

landlord or owner ofthe property is delinquent. See copies of Sections 69-09-0 1 - 1 8 . 1  

(gas service) & 69-09-02-05 . 1  (electric service) of the ND Administrative Code attached. 



Engrossed SB 217 4 clarifies that the customer is entitled to advance notice and 

that the customer may designate that a third party, such as the landlord or owner, may be 

notified in advance before service is disconnected or terminated. 

Members of North Dakota Manufactured Housing Association as well as others 

who are effected by the lack of advance notice before tennination of gas or electric 

service testified in the Senate committee hearing. Foil owing the Senate hearing an 

amendment was worked out and agreed to by the interested parties which was included 

within Engrossed SB 2174 when it passed the Senate by a vote of 45 to 0. 

I am here on behalf of those individuals to express support for the advance notice 

requirements that are now included within Engrossed SB 2174. I will end my formal 

testimony at this point and stand for any questions and simply conclude with a request 

that you give a favorable Do Pass recommendation to Engrossed SB 2174. 



C hapter 
6 9-09-0 1 

6 9-09-02 

6 9-09-03 

6 9-09-04 

6 9-09-05 

6 9-09-0 5 . 1  

6 9-09-06 

6 9-09-07 

69-09-08 

6 9-09-09 

Section 
6 9-09-0 1 -0 1  

6 9-09-0 1 -02 

6 9-09-0 1 -03 

6 9-09-0 1 -04 

69-09-0 1 -05 

6 9-09-0 1 -06 

6 9-09-0 1 -07 

69-09-0 1 -08 

6 9-09-0 1 -09 

69-09-0 1 -1 0 

69-09-0 1 -1 1 

69-09-0 1 -1 2  

6 9-09-0 1 -1 3 

69-09-01 -1 4 

69-09-0 1 -1 5  

6 9-09-0 1 -1 6 

6 9-09-0 1 -1 7  

69-09-0 1 -1 8  

6 9-09-0 1 -1 8 . 1  

6 9-09-0 1 - 1 9  

6 9-09-0 1 -20 

6 9-09-0 1 -2 1  

6 9-09-0 1 -22 

69-09-0 1 -23 

69-09-0 1 -24 

69-09-0 1 -25 

69-09-0 1 -26 

69-09-0 1 -27 

ARTICLE 69-09 

P U B LIC UTILITY DIVISION 

Standards of  Service - Gas 
Standards of Service - Electric 
Gas Pipel ine Safety 
U n iform Sign Standards - Rai lroad 
Stand ards of Service - Telephone 
Accou nting P ractices 
Proh ibition on Sale and Direct I n d u stria l  Use of N atu ra l  Gas for 

Outdoor Lig hting [Repealed] 
Smal l  Power Prod uction and Cogeneration 
Renewable Electricity and Recycled Energy Tracking System 
Wind Tu rbine Decommissioning 

CHAPTER 69-09-01 
STANDARDS OF SERVI C E - GAS 

Defin ition s  
H eating Value 
Calorimeter Eq uipment 
Pu rity of Gas 
P ressure of Gas 
P ressure Recording Equipment and Records 
Defin ition of a C ubic Foot of Gas 
Testing Facil ities 
Meter Prover 
Location of Meters 
Service M eters Req uired · 
P repayment M eters 
Gas Mete r Accu racy Requirements · 
Periodic Tests 
Requests and Referee Tests 
Meter Test Reco rds 
Deposits and G uarantees 
Discontinuance of Service [Su perseded] 
Discontinuance of Gas Service 
Extensions of Service 
I nformation to Customers 
Bi l l ing Basis 
M eter Readings on Bi l ls 
Adjustment of B i l ls for Meter Error 
Refunds 
Resale 
Fi l ing of Rates 
Rate Appl ications 



which the customer owes the util ity. Upon termination of a g ua rantee 
contract a new contract or a cash dep osit may be req u ired by the util ity. 

H istory: Amended effective April 1 ,  1 985.  

General Authority: N DCC 49-02-1 1 

Law I m plemen ted : N DCC 49-02-1 1 

69-09-01 -1 8. Discontin.uance of service. Superseded by section 
6 9-09-0 1 -1 8 . 1 . 

69-09-01 -1 8.1 . Discontinuance of gas service. 

1 .  A util ity may d isconn ect service if the customer is del inq uent in payment 
for services rendered . H owever, no uti l ity shall discontin ue service to a 
customer for fa i lure to pay for s uch service until th e util ity shal l  first have 
g iven the customer n otice of its intention to d iscontinue such service on 
account of del inquency. The n otice shal l :  

a .  B e  sent by first-class mail  addressed to the customer a t  t h e  place 
where service is rendered , except that in the case of residential 
customers s ixty-five years of age or older, or for hand icapped 
customers ,  perso nal  notice by del ivery is req u i red.  A copy of each 
notice must also be mailed to the nearest social service office and 
to any other appropriate financial  assistance agency, p rovid ing 
that prior approval has been g iven by the customer p u rs u ant to 
su bsection 2.  

b .  Show the a m o u n t  of the del inquency. 

c .  Include the telephone num ber of  the p u bl ic service com mission.  

d .  Advise the customer of the customer's rig hts and remedies,  
including the right of the customer to stay termination for u p  to 
th irty days if the customer advises the utility within the ten-day 
notice period that dangerous health. cQ.illljtLQ.tl?.-§��t or that the 
customer is sixty-five years of age or older or that the custo mer is 
hand icapped . In add ition, the notice shal l  advise th e customer of 
the customer's right to work out a satisftl9�fe.u:ed. it:!l�tallme.u1 
agreement for del inq uent accounts and of the opportu n ity to enter 
imo equalmonthly payment plans for future service. 

e .  Inform the customer that service will be d iscontinued if the 
del inquent account is not paid withi n  ten calen dar days from the 
date of mai l ing or personal del ivery of the n otice , or if a satisfactory 
insta llment agreement is n ot made with the util ity for payment of 
the del inquent bi l l .  

If th e customer elects to enter into a deferred insta l lment agreement for 
del inq uent accounts , service may not be termin ated ; however, the util ity 
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may discontinue service without further notice if the customer fa i ls to pay 
the del inqu ent account  o n  o r  before the date specified in the n otice, o r  
in accordance with the d eferred insta llment a g reement. The customer 
shall h ave the privi lege of  paying the del inquent a ccou nt at  a n y  time 
prior to the a ctual  d isconnection of service, and the person d i re cted by 
the uti l ity to m ake the d isconnection shal l  be deemed authorized and 
sha l l  a ccept payment of  the d el inquent account  i f  tendered to  the p erson 
by the customer before a ctua l  d isconnection of service is made.  

2 .  It s h a l l  be the responsibi l ity of a l l  residential customers s ixty-five years 
of age o r  o lder, handicapped,  o r  h aving an e mergency med ical p ro blem 
in the household,  incl u d i n g  l ife-susta ining a ppl iances,  such a s  kidney 
dialysis, to notify the uti lity of such status. To assist in such n otifi cation , 
al l  uti l ities shal l  ann u ally inClude a p readdressed p ostage-paid p ostcard 
in the month ly bi l l ing m ai led to all residential customers d u ring the b i l l ing 
period ending October first. Such notice shal l  a lso be p rovided to al l  new 
customers in that service area when they a re first p rovided service by 
the uti l ity. 

The p o.stca rd shal l  include the following q uestions:  

-,.-
1 .  I s  any member o f  your household 6 5  y e a r s  

o f  a g e  or older , or handicapped? 

2 .  Do you have any eme rgency medi cal prob l em 

in your househol d ?  

3 .  D o  you des i r e  t h a t  t h e  are a s o c i a l  s e rvi c e  

o f f i ce o r  o t h e r  appropriate f i n a n c i a l  

a s s i s t ance a g e n c y  b e  not i f i e d  in t h e  event 

of a prop o s e d  d i s conne c t ?  

4 .  Do you de s i re t h a t  some other third p a r t y  

be c o n t a c t e d  i n  t h e  e v e n t  of a d i s conne c t ?  

I f  s o ,  name a n d  addr e s s  of person ______ _ 

5 .  I f  you are h a v i n g  d i f f i cu l t y  paying your 

u t i l i t y  b i l l ,  p l e a s e  contact our l oc a l  

s ervi c e  repre s en t a t ive or bus in e s s  o f f i ce 

so t h a t  we c a n  work wi th you on your 

probl em . 

U t i l i t y  T e l ephone Numb e r  --------------­
O f f i c e  Addr e s s  -----------------------

D a t e  ____ _ N ame 

Addres s ----------------

S i gnature 

YES NO 

3. Service sh al l  not be d isconnected under this section on weekends,  
Fridays, state hol idays, the day before a state hol iday, or after 
twelve noon on any day. A report describ ing the total n u m ber of 
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a ctual  d isconnects , date a n d  time, type of customer, and amount of 
de l inquen cy for each d isconnected customer sha l l  be fi led m onth ly with 
the com m ission with in ten d ays after the l ast d ay of each month . 

4 .  Whenever service h a s  been d isconnected for n o n payment o f  a b i l l ,  
b efore reconnection i s  m a d e  t h e  customer1 sha l l  p a y  t h e  reco nnectio n  
fee established in  the uti lity's rate sched u les;  m a ke a deposit pursuant  
to section 69-09-02-04 i f  a l l  or a part of  the p revious deposit was used 
i n  settlement of the del inquent bi l l ;  and m a ke a satisfactory settlement  
for the d el inquent b i l l  and for service rendered b etween the last m eter 
reading d ate and the date service was discon nected.  

5.  I n  the event the customer d isp utes the a mount of a b i l l  for service ,  
t h e  customer m ay, to p revent d isconnection for nonpayment, pay th e 
d isputed bi l l  under protest to the util ity. Altern atively, the customer m a y  
req u est a formal hearing pursuant t o  section 69-02-02-02 in which case 
the util ity shal l  not disconnect service for n on payment of the disputed 
bi l l  u nti l a fina l  decision has been issued by the commission. The uti l ity 
s h a l l  immediately g ive the commission notice of the dispute a n d  the 
commission m ay investigate the dispute. The util ity shal l  refund to the 
customer any part of  such payment made u n der protest found by t h e  
com m ission t o  be excessive. 

6. A uti l ity may not disconnect service to a customer for fa i lure of the 
customer to pay for merch and ise purchased from the util ity; to  pay for 
a d ifferent class of service fu rn ished by the uti lity; to pay for service 
rendered to a previous occupant of the premises; or to pay the b i l l  of 
a n other customer as g u a rantor thereof. 

7.  A uti l ity m ay discontinue service to a customer for fa i lure to com p ly 
with reg u lations of the util ity on fi le with the commission perta i n i n g  
t o  i n stal lation and operation o f  uti lization equipment, or for use o f  
e q u ipment which interferes with , or adversely affects, the service 
to other customers ,  provided the custom e r  has first been n otified 
a n d  afforded reasonable opportun ity to ch ange or disconnect such 
equipment.  

8.  A uti l ity m ay discontinue service to a customer upon ten days' written 
n otice if the meter or other eq u ipment insta l led by the util ity has been 
tam pered with,  or if there has been a diversion of service, or if  the 
customer is uti l izing gas before the energy has passed through a meter 
instal led by the utility. 

9 .  Whe n  a customer who has ten ants is inc luding the cost of uti l ity 
services in the rent charged a n d  the util ity b i l l  becomes del inquent,  
the uti l ity before disconnecting service m ust a lso n otify the tenants in 
writin g  at least ten days prior to the proposed termin ation date. The 
util ity must al low each tenant to apply to become the customer of 
the util ity in  the tenant's own name,  to have the service to the rental 
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facil ity continued or resu med, and to pay the pro rata s ha re of future 
bi l ls .  Such ten ant-customer shal l  be subject to a l l  the provisions of th is  
chapter. 

1 0 . A util ity m ay n ot discontinue service to a customer for n o n payment of a 
deposit. 

H istory: Effective October 1 ,  1 980;  a mended effective M ay 1 ,  1 996;  J uly 1 ,  1 997;  

April 1 ,  200 1 ; J a n u a ry 1 ,  2002. 

General  A uthority: N DCC 4 9-02-1 1 

Law I m pl em ente d :  N D C C  4 9-02- 1 1  

69-09-01 -1 9. Extensions of service. 

1 .  The util ity shal l  m a ke a l l  extensions to its mains and services where the 
investment is justified by the anticipated revenue to be received . 

2 .  I n  t h e  event th e uti l ity does not bel ieve that th e extension i s  j ustified , 
the comm issio n sha l l ,  when so req uested by one or more p rosp e ctive 
customers desiring such extension and upon proper heari n g ,  dete r m i n e  
whether or not s u ch extension s h o u l d  be m ade, and shal l  d eterm i n e  t h e  
respective amou nts th at t h e  p rospective customer or customers a n d  the 
util ity sha l l  pay. 

3 .  When s o  requested by a prospective customer engaged i n  the operatio n  
o f  a l icensed trai ler court for month-to-m onth parking of mobile h omes,  
the util ity sha l l  m ake extension to  its mains  and service s ,  subj e ct to 
the provisions of s u bsections 1 and 2 ,  to provide natura l  gas service 
through a master meter instal led in a location with in the confi n e s  of 
the mobile trai ler court. The trailer court operator shal l  h ave s e rvice 
facilities to individual  tra iler parking locations which the operator s h a ll 
own and maintain con structed . by competent and qua l ified pers o n s ,  
a n d  s h a l l  arrange for inspection b y  a n d  approval from a responsible 
inspector to assure that the service facilities from the m eter locatio n  to 
the mobi le home locations and gas service facilities and a ppl ian ces to 
and with in  mobi le h omes to be served comply with piping a n d  app l iance 
o rdinances or req u i rements of applicable rules and reg u lations of a n y  
authority vested with j u risd iction of the subject matter. 

General Auth ority: N D CC 4 9-02-1 1 

Law I m plemented :  N DCC 49-02- 1 1  

69-09-01 -20. I nform ati o n to custom ers .  A util ity shal l :  

1 .  Keep copies of its rate sched u les, ru les,  and reg u latio ns o n  fi le in every 
office where payments a re received. 
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the util ity o r  a change i n  location covered by the g uarantee agreement 
or thirty days after written req u est for termination is made to the util ity 
by the g uarantor. H owever, no agreement may be terminated without 
the customer having made · satisfactory settlement for a ny balance 
which the customer owes the util ity. Upon termination of a g uarantee 
· contract a n ew contract or a cash deposit may be required by the uti l ity. 

History: Amended effective April 1 ,  1 985. 
Genera l  Authority: N D CC 49-02-1 1 
Law I m plemente d :  N DCC 49-02-1 1  

69-09-02-05. Discontinuance of service. Superseded by section 
69-09-02-05. 1 .  

69-09-02-05.1 . Discontinuance of electric service. 

1 .  A uti l ity may disconnect service if the customer is delinquent i n  payment 
for services rendered.  However, no util ity shall d iscontinue s ervice to a 
customer for fa i lure to pay for such service until the uti l ity shal l  first have 
given the customer n otice of its intention to discontinue s uch service on 
account of del inquency. The notice shal l :  

a .  B e  sent by first-class mail  addressed to the customer at the p lace 
where service is rendered, except that in the case of res idential . 
customers sixty-five years of age or older, o r  for handicapped 
customers, personal notice by delivery is required. A copy of e ach 
n otice must also be mailed to the nearest social  service office and . 
to any other appropriate financial ass istance agency, p rovid ing 
that prior approval has been g iven by the ·customer purs uant to 
s ubsection 2. 

b. Show the amount of the delinquency. 

c. Incl ude the telephone number of the publ ic service com m ission. 

d.  Advise the customer of the customer's rights and remedies, 
including, but not l imited to , the rig ht of the customer to stay 
termination for up to thirty days if the customer advises the util ity 
with in the ten-day notice period that dangerous health conditions 
exist or that the customer is sixty-five years of age or older or that 
the customer is handicapped. In addition, the notice sha l l  advise 
the customer of the customer's right to work out a satisfa ctory 
deferred installment agreement for del inquent accounts and of the 
opportunity to enter into equal month ly payment plans for future 
service. 

e. Inform the customer that service will be discontinued if the 
del inquent account is not paid with in ten calendar days from the 
date of mail ing or personal delivery of the notice, or if a satisfactory 
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instal lment agreement is not made with the util ity for payment of 
the del inquent bi l l .  

If the customer e lects to enter into a deferred instal lment agreement for 
del inquent accounts, service may not be terminated; h owever, the util ity 
may discontinue service without further notice if the customer fai ls to pay 
the del inquent account on or before the date specified in the n otice, or 
in  accordance with the deferred installment agreement. The customer 
shal l  have the privi lege of paying the delinquent acco u nt at any time 
prior to the actual d isconnection of service, and the person d i re cted by 
the util ity to make the disco n nection shal l  be deemed a uthorized and 
shal l  accept payment ofthe del inquent account if tendered to the person 
by the customer before actua l  disconnection of service is made. 

2. I t  shal l  be the responsibi lity of a l l  residential customers s ixty� five years 
of age or older, handicapped, or having an emergency medical p roblem 
in  the household , including l ife-sustain ing appliances, such as kidney 
dialysis, to n otify the uti lity of such status .  To assist in such n otificatio n ,  
a l l  utilities shal l  annual ly include a preaddressed postage-paid postcard 
in the monthly bi l l ing mailed to a l l  residential customers d uring the b i l l ing 
period ending October first. Such notice shal l  also be p rovided to a l l  n ew 
customers i n  that service area when they are first p rovided service b y  
the uti lity. 

The postcard shall include the fol lowing q uestions: 

1 .  Is  a ny member of your household 65 years of age or o lder, 
or handicapped ?  

2 .  Do you have a ny emergency medical problem in your 
household? 

3. Do you desire that the a rea social service office or  othe r  
appropriate fin ancial assistance agency b e  notified in t h e  
event of a proposed disconnect? 

4. Do you desire that some other third party be 
contacted in the event of a disconnect? If  
so, name and address of person ___ _ 

5. I f  you are having difficu lty paying your uti l ity bi l l ,  please 
contact our local service representative or business office 
so that we can work with you on your problem. 

Util ity Telephone N umber ______ _ 
Office Address ___________ _ 
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Date __ _ Name _______________ __ 
Address _______ _ 

Signature 

3 .  Service shall  not be disco n nected under this section on weekends,  
Fridays, state hol idays, the day before a state hol iday, or after 
twelve noon on any day. A report describing the total n umber of 
actual  disconnects, date and time, type of customer, and amount of 
delinq uency for each disco n nected customer shall be fi led monthly with 
the commission with in ten days after the last day of each month .  

4 .  Whenever service h a s  been disconnected for nonpayment of a bi l l ,  
before recon nection is made the customer shall pay the reconnection 
fee established in the util ity's rate schedules; make a deposit pursuant 

· to section 69-09-02-04 if ·a ll or a part of the previous deposit was used 
in  settlement of the delinquent bi l l ;  and make a satisfactory settlement 
for the delinquent bi l l  and for service rendered between the last meter 
reading date and the date service was disconnected. 

5. In  the event the customer d isputes the amount of a bil l  for service, 
the customer may, to prevent disconnection for nonpayment, pay the 
disputed bil l  under protest to the uti l ity. Alternatively, the customer may 
req uest a formal hearing pursuant to section 69-02-02-02 in which case 
the uti l ity shall  not discon nect service for nonpayment of the disputed 
bill unti l  a final decision has been issued by the commission. The uti lity 
shal l  immediately g ive the commission notice of the dispute, and the 
comm ission may i nvestigate ·fhe dispute. The utility shall refund to the 
customer any part of such payment made under protest found by th e 
comm ission to be excessive. 

6 .  .A util ity may not disconnect service to a customer for fa i lure of the 
customer to pay for merchandise purchased from the util ity; to pay for 
a different class of service furnished by the uti l ity; to pay for service 
rendered to a previous occupant of.the premises; or to pay the bill of 
another customer as guarantor thereof. 

7. A util ity may discontinue service to a custorner for fa ilure to comply 
with regulations of the util ity on fi le with the commission pertaining 
to insta llation and operation of utilization equipment, or for use of 
equipment which interferes with, or adversely affects, the service 
to othe r  customers, provided the customer h as first been notified 
and afforded reasonable opportun ity to change or disconnect such 
eq uipment. 

8. A uti l ity may discontinue service to a customer upon ten days' written 
notice if the meter or other equipment insta lled by the utility has been 
tampered with, or if there has been a diversion of service, or if the 
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customer is util izing electricity before the energy has passed through 
a m eter insta lled by the util ity. 

9 .  When a customer w h o  has tenants is including t h e  cost of util ity 
services in the rent charged and the util ity bil l  becomes del inquent, 
the util ity before disconnecting service m ust also notify the tenants in 
writing at least ten days prior to the proposed termination date. The 
util ity must al low each tenant to apply to become the customer of 
the utility i n  the tenant's own name, to have the service to the rental 
facil ity continued or resumed, a nd to pay the pro rata share of future 
bil ls. S uch tenant-customer shal l  be subject to all the provisions of this 
chapte r. 

1 0. A util ity may not discontinue service to a customer for nonpayment of a 
deposit. 

History: Effective October 1 ,  1 980; amended effective May 1 ,  1 996; July 1 ,  1 997; 
April 1 ,  2001 ; January 1 ,  2002. 

· 

Genera l  Authority: N DCC 49-02-1 1  
Law Implemented:  N D CC 49-02- 1 1 

69-09-02-06. Continuity of service. 

1 .  Each uti l ity shal l  make every reasonable effort to prevent interruptions 
of service, and when · such interruptions occur shall endeavor to 
reesta blish service within the s hortest possible time. Whenever the 
service is necessarily interrupted o r  curta iled for the purpose of working 
on equ ipment, i t  shal l  be done at a t ime which,  if at al l  practicable, 
wil l  cause the least inconvenience to customers,  except in cases of 
emergency. 

2 .  Each util ity s hall keep a record o f  all interruptions t o  service affecting 
the entire d istribution system of any single community or an important 
division of a community, and include in the record the date and tim e  of 
interruption, the date and time service was restored, and,  if known, the 
cause of each interruption. Service interruption records shall be kept 
for a period of six years .  

General  Authority: N DCC 49-02-1 1  
Law Im plemented:  NDCC 49-02-1 1  

69-09-02-07. Extension of service. 

1 .  I t  shall  be the obl igation of each utility to make reason able extensions 
of its l ines and services to new customers with in any a rea in which it is 
authorized to serve. 

· 
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